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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 2008 — PETROLIA DRILLING ASA

INTRODUCTION

Petrolia Drilling ASA is registered with business address in Oslo, Norway. The company
is listed on Oslo Stock Exchange.

Petrolia Drilling ASA owns Petrolia Services (100%), an International Oilfield Service
Company with presence in Norway, The Netherlands, Romania, Australia, New Zealand
and Singapore. Petrolia Services main business activity is hiring out drilling equipment
and test strings, including accessories, to oil companies, oil service companies and
drilling contractors. Petrolia Services main product categories include tubing, drill pipe,
casing and handling equipment as well as oilfield services.

Petrolia Drilling ASA also holds significant shareholdings in PetroMENA ASA (51.5%),
Venture Drilling (50%), Petrojack ASA (39.95%) and Larsen Rig Ltd (30%).

STRATEGY

Petrolia Drilling ASA is directing its activities towards the offshore oil and gas market,
drilling for oil and gas in shallow and deep waters, and providing equipment and services
to clients. The object of the company is acquisition and operation of drilling vessels and
everything that is connected herewith, including partnership in other companies.

The purpose of the company is to secure the shareholders competitive long-term return
on the invested capital. In accordance with this purpose the board and the management
shall actively develop and control the company and its possessions in order for the values
to be made visible in the best way possible.

HIGHLIGHTS 2008

= Petrolia Drilling strengthened its exposure in the drilling market through
participation in a private placement in PetroMENA ASA during the first half of
2008.

=SS Petrolia (owned by the subsidiary PetroMENA ASA) started operations under
the 913 days contract with Pemex in the Gulf of Mexico in February 2008. Gross
contract value of the Pemex contract is mUSD 269.

» PetroMENA ASA has three modern, semi submersible drilling rigs, (PetroRig 1, 11
and I1T) under construction at the Jurong Shipyard in Singapore. The rigs are sixth
generation units constructed for drilling in unsheltered areas in ultra-deep waters as




Brazil, the Mexican Gulf and West-Africa. Scheduled delivery of the rigs is April
2009, October 2009 and January 2010 respectively. PetroRig I and Il have entered
into five-year contracts with Petroleo Brasileiro S.A. at gross value of respectively
mUSD 700 and mUSD 645. PetroRig 111 has entered into a five-year contract with
Pemex at a gross value of mUSD 942. In order to take delivery of the rigs under
construction, PetroMENA has to secure additional external financing. Petrolia
Drilling is aware of the challenges regarding the remaining funding, and at present a
sale of PetroRig | and PetroRig Il seems the most likely alternative to secure
shareholder values.

Petrojack ASA has ordered two jack-up rigs at the Jurong Shipyard in Singapore.
Petrojack 11 was delivered in March 2008 and accepted for operation by Saipem in
April 2008. Petrojack Il was sold to Saipem in January 2009 in order to finance the
delivery of Petrojack 1V. Petrojack IV was delivered from Jurong Shipyard in
January 2009 and mobilised to Thailand to commence on a 5 years drilling contract
with PTT Exploration and Production Public Company Limited. Total value of the
contract is mUSD 275. Petrojack also owns 24.99% of Petrolia Drilling ASA and
42.2% of PetroProd Ltd. PetroProd is working on the engineering and construction
of a CJ70 jack-up rig at Jurong Shipyard. In April 2009 the loan trustee, Norsk
Tillitsmann, declared the bond loan in default and the Grand Court of the Cayman
[slands ordered a provisional liquidator. PetroProd Ltd has on 21* of April 2009,
received a notice of delisting from Oslo Stock Exchange.

DS Deep Venture (50% controlled through Venture Drilling AS) commenced on an
18 month contract with ExxonMobil ultimo June 2007. The gross value of the
contract is in the mUSD 200-220 range. The contract was recently extended, and DS
Deep Venture will be engaged for Maersk Oil Angola until 25 July 2009, at a day
rate of USD 425,000, after withholding tax. Venture Drilling AS has agreed to a
further 18 months contract with Maersk Oil Angola starting from the 25" of July
2009 at a dayrate of USD 495,000 after withholding tax. DS Deep Venture is
performing well under the contract. Going forward Petrolia Drilling expect
significant revenues to accrue to Petrolia Drilling from its holding in Venture
Drilling AS.

During 2008 Petrolia Services has increased its activities through significant
investments in various drilling equipment for the oil and gas industry. The current
activity in the oil service market provides a steady cash flow for the company, and
Petrolia Services is expected to generate attractive return on its investment in the
longer term.

In 2008 Petrolia Drilling invested in Larsen Rig Ltd (30% owned). Larsen Rig Ltd
is building a new deepwater semisubmersible drilling rig at Jurong Shipyard in
Singapore, identical to the PetroMENA rigs. The rig is planned to be delivered in
the second quarter 2011.




MARKET

The market for deepwater semi submersible drilling rigs is firm. The demand for
deepwater rigs is expected to remain strong as oil companies have a significant back-log
of drilling projects (both exploration and development projects) due to falling
replacement ratios and decline in oil production. However, the current credit crunch will
make it difficult to secure funding of newbuilding programs, which again will effect the
market.

The average age of the global jack-up fleet is close to 23 years. There are currently
approximately 60 jack-up rigs under construction, including options, corresponding to 15
% of the global jack-up fleet. The jack-up market has softened recently.

The market for hiring out drilling equipment has been satisfactory in 2008.

ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Petrolia Drilling has with effect from | January 2008 changed presentation currency from
NOK to USD. All comparative figures have been converted and presented in USD for
information purposes.

Financial information

Total revenues were mUSD 155.5 for the fiscal year 2008, whereof mUSD 73.7 came
from SS Petrolia and mUSD 81.6 came from Petrolia Services. Total revenues for the
fiscal year 2007 equalled mUSD 131.9.

Operating profit before depreciation and impairment for the group for the full year 2008
was mUSD 32.0. The expenses mainly relate to OPEX in connection with SS Petrolia,
mobilisation of SS PetroRig I and the operations of the hiring out business.

Operating profit for the group amounts to mUSD -502.0 for 2008, after deduction of
depreciation of mUSD 32.0 and impairment of construction contracts semi rigs of mUSD
502.1. Operating profit for the group for 2007 was mUSD 39.1 after deduction of mUSD
26.6 in depreciation.

Result after tax for the group amounts to mUSD -506.4, including negative result from
investment in associates of mUSD 25.3 and impairment of investment in associates of
mUSD 88.3. Share of result from Venture Drilling AS contributes positively with mUSD
28.5. Net financial items of mUSD 81.5 include unrealised currency gain on the group’s
bond loans nominated in NOK with mUSD 170.9. The USD has appreciated against
NOK in 2008.

Per 31 December 2008 total assets of the group amounted to mUSD 1,027.1.
SS Petrolia has a carrying value of mUSD 28.3 reflecting historical cost, including
upgrades, adjusted for depreciation. The value of the rig in today’s market is higher.




Total assets also include three rigs under construction, PetroRig I, I and II1. The rigs
have suffered impairment in 2008. PetroRig I and Il are valued at selling price less costs
to sell and PetroRig II1 is valued at selling price according to received MoU. Book value
of drilling equipment in Petrolia Services as of 31 December 2008 is mUSD 119.5.

The 39.95% ownership in Petrojack ASA is carried at a value of NOK 2.93/USD 0.42 per
share, equivalent to the stock market price per 31.12.2008. Impairment of the Petrojack
shares amounts to mUSD 59.3. Third parties valuations indicate a value of the Petrojack
shares far above market value.

The 30% ownership in Larsen Rig Ltd is booked at mUSD 21.

Carried equity of the group amounts to mUSD 58.7 per 31.12.2008, including a minority
interest of mUSD 43.1. Carried equity 31.12.2007 was mUSD 554.2 including a minority
interest of mUSD 202.1.

Per 31 December 2008, the total number of shares outstanding in Petrolia Drilling ASA
was 1,012,596,745, each with par value NOK 0.50.

The group has achieved positive cash flow from the operations of the year of mUSD 31.6
compared to mUSD 112.3 in 2007. Cash flow from investments in 2008 was mUSD -
405.3 mainly related to instalments paid to Jurong and investment in Petroresources Ltd
and Larsen Rig Ltd. Cash flow from investments in 2007 amounted to mUSD 224.9.
Cash flow from financing activities in 2008 was mUSD -104.6 mainly related to shares
issued in PetroMENA and repayment and interest on bond loans. Cash flow from
financing activities in the same period in 2007 was mUSD 256.6. Total cash position year
end 2008 was mUSD 127.8 compared to mUSD 612.3 year end 2007,

The revenue of the parent company for the same period amounts to mUSD 0.0 compared
to mUSD 6.1 in 2007, Total operating expenses for 2008 amounts to mUSD 5.3, no
depreciations. In 2007 total operating expenses were mUSD 4.3, depreciations made
mUSD 1.3. Net finance in 2008 is negative by mUSD 188.5 mainly due to impairment of
shares, The PetroMENA shares were impaired to stock market price 31.12.2008 of NOK
1.42/USD 0.20 due to the current financial situation in the company. The Petrojack shares
have also been impaired to stock market price per 31.12.2008 of NOK 2.93/USD 0.42 per
share. Net finance in 2007 was mUSD -29.6.

Result after tax for the parent company is mUSD -205.0 compared to mUSD 0.3 in 2007.
Carried equity has been reduced to mUSD 216.2 per 31.12.08 compared to mUSD 421.9
in 2007. Cash flow from operations in 2008 was mUSD -7.5 compared to mUSD -14.3 in
2007. Cash flow from investments was mUSD -63.6 in 2008 mainly related to
investments in PetroMENA ASA and Petrolia Invest AS. Cash flow from investments in
2007 amounted to mUSD 8.4. Cash flow from financing activities in 2008 was mUSD
93.5 mainly due to refinancing of bond loan of mMNOK 500 and funding from the
subsidiary Petrolia Rigs. Cash flow from financing activities in the same period in 2007




was mUSD 1.7. Total cash position year end 2008 was 15.2 compared to mUSD 1.1 year
end 2007.

FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY RISK

In December 2007 PetroMENA established a mUSD 200 bank financing facility for each
of the rigs with Lloyds TSB Bank (“Lloyds”), equalling the maximum amount of First
Priority Debt allowed under the Bond Loan Agreements.

However, the undrawn mUSD 200 credit facilities for each of the new buildings will not
be sufficient to fully fund each rig; consequently there is a funding gap to bring the units
into operation.

PetroMENA has discussed with Lloyds and another bank to jointly provide the requested
amount needed to take delivery of Petrorig I and get the rig into operation. The banks
provided the Company with an indicative term sheet for a new mUSD 300 credit facility
related to Petrorig I, but would not finalize the loan facility, unless consent from
Bondholders regarding certain issues was given. Such consent was not given by the
Bondholders, in stead PetroMENA has received default notices from Norsk Tillitsmann,
the loan trustee for all bond loans in the PetroMENA group. PetroMENA reject that any
default exist, and hence no change has been made in classification of bond loans in
relation to the above. Due to the default notice from Norsk Tillitsmann Lloyds has
withdrawn the loan commitment of mUSD 600.

PetroMENA has received memorandum of understanding (MOUSs) related to sale of all
rigs under construction. Any such sale is subject to Bondholder approval. The Company
is of the opinion that, due to the default notices from Norsk Tillitsmann, the preferred
alternative for both creditors and current shareholders is sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig
1.

A Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) has been signed for PetroRig I at mUSD
450 and PetroRig 11 at mUSD 425. A potential sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig Il requires
early redemption of the 9.75% bond loan and partial redemption of the 10.85 % bond
loan. Larsen Oil & Gas is entitled to a sales commission equal to 4 % of total
consideration in the event of sale of PetroRig | or PetroRig I1.

Based on the assumption that the MOU for rig 1 and II leads to a sale of these rigs, and
that bondholders approves such a sale and accept full redemption of the 9.75 % bond loan
and acceptance of partial redemption of the 10.85 % bond loan, PetroMENA will not
require external financing before delivery of PetroRig III in January 2010.

The Board is aware of the challenges and uncertainties regarding the remaining funding,
and irrespective of a sale of PetroRig I and 11 is completed, PetroMENA will have a
significant unfunded construction program related to PetroRig I11. Such new funding is
subject to acceptance from the bondholders in the loan related to PetroRig III.
PetroMENA will work actively towards selling PetroRig I11 if not able to secure




additional financing in order to take delivery of PetroRig I11 and bring the unit into
operation. The Company will seek to establish financing for the remaining instalments
related to construction of PetroRig I1I from Lloyds and/or other banks in order to take
delivery of PetroRig Il and recover shareholder values through future cash flow from the
five year drilling contract entered into with Pemex, representing a total value of mUSD
942. Possible funding alternatives are to secure similar bank debt structures as the new
PetroRig I facility or to sell the rig. Alternatively, the Company could issue new equity at
term acceptable to current shareholders if the market allows for that going forward.

At present the alternative described above seems the most realistic avenue to secure
future operations of PetroMENA ASA.

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are of the opinion that the financial
statements should be based on the going concern assumption.

Please be advised that PetroMENA has not secured complete financing for the
construction program with Jurong and whether such financing is obtained or not is highly
uncertain, The group has received MOU regarding sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig 11, and
subject to bondholder approval of certain changes in redemption profile of bonds,
PetroMENA will be able to sell PetroRig [ and PetroRig II with net positive proceeds.
Following a potential sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig II, PetroMENA will be able to
continue its efforts to secure financing for PetroRig I1I in order to take delivery and bring
the unit into operations. Please be aware that the outcome of the group’s efforts to
conclude a sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig Il is highly uncertain.

The group has made impairments of its rigs under construction in connection with
submission of the annual accounts. The impairments were based on the MOU’s received
regarding sale of the rigs under construction, which reflects what the group could obtain,
at the balance sheet date from disposal of the Rigs. If bondholders will not accept sale of
PetroRig 1 and PetroRig 11, and early redemption at terms described herein, the potential
loss for PetroMENA may exceed the impairments recognized as of 31 December 2008,

For the avoidance of any doubt, please be aware that the groups liabilities, including
bonds and commitments with regards to the construction contracts entered into with
Jurong mainly lies in the subsidiary PetroMENA ASA, in which the Petrolia Drilling
ASA holds 51.5% of outstanding shares. Petrolia Drilling ASA has no obligation to
increase its investments in PetroMENA through participation in future possible share
issues or through issuance of new bonds or through loans to secure that PetroMENA can
take delivery of the rigs under construction. Petrolia Drilling ASA’s assets, including
Petrolia Services, Venture Drilling and Petrojack ASA among other will not be affected
by a potential default on the bondloan agreements in PetroMENA ASA.




If PetroMENA is not able to secure financing for the rigs under construction or complete
the contemplated sale of PetroRig | and PetroRig II, the group will not be able to take
delivery of PetroRig | and PetroRig II. In such an event Jurong may sell the rigs under
construction at the risk of PetroMENA ASA and its bondholders. In the event that
PetroMENA is not able to take delivery of the rigs under construction PetroMENA will
be exposed to a potential loss equal to the total instalments paid to Jurong,.

Petrolia Drilling ASA’s (and the group’s liabilities excluding liabilities in PetroMENA)
long term liabilities mainly consist of the mNOK 500 bond and leasing liability of mUSD
30.4. Petrolia Drilling expects significant revenues from both Petrolia Services and
Venture Drilling going forward and is of the opinion that the Company will be able to
service its liabilities through operational cashflow from its assets and businesses.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND PERSONNEL

Petrolia Drilling ASA has no employees of its own.

Management of the Company is attended to through a management agreement with
Larsen Oil & Gas AS and Larsen Oil & Gas Ltd. Larsen Oil & Gas AS is to carry out

administration, accounting and budgeting,.

LOG Ltd shall be acting as manager on project management and operation until
otherwise arranged.

In total the group has 218 employees through the 10T group in respectively Norway,
Holland, Romania, Australia and New Zealand, including 41 women. Total number of
man-labour years was 217.5. As far as The Board of Directors are aware, there have not
been any serious damages or accidents in 2008,

Total absence due to sickness has been 2.2% during the accounting year.
g gy

Petrolia Drilling’s Board of Directors consists of 3 men and 2 women.




ENVIRONMENT REPORTING

The company has as objective that all activities that are performed are to be carried out
without damage on people or surroundings. The company’s activities this year have not
caused pollution of the environment in defiance of demands made by the prevailing
authorities.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

After the balance sheet date Petrojack has taken delivery of the Petrojack 1V, which
commenced a drilling contract with PTT Exploration & Production Public Company
Limited shortly after delivery. In order to secure financing for the last instalment
regarding the construction of Petrojack 1V, Petrojack Il was sold to Saipem (Portugal)
Comercio Maritimo S.U. LDA. Following the sale of the Petrojack II, the Company
redeemed bonds in accordance with the amended loan agreements in the Bond Loans,
approved on the bondholders meetings on 19 November 2008. The net proceeds after
redemption of bonds were used to pay the final yard instalment for Petrojack V.

After the balance sheet date, PetroMENA (subsidiary of Petrolia Drilling) has actively
been working to secure additional financing and/or solutions for the rigs under
construction.

In connection with financing of PetroRig |, PetroMENA has held various bondholder
meetings to reach acceptance to increase the carve-out for First Priority Debt related to
PetroRig I from mUSD 200 to mUSD 300 in order to secure financing for the remaining
instalments and mobilisation of PetroRig I. The bondholders’ meetings regarding the
9.75% and the 10.85% bond loans approved the proposal, however with certain
conditions.

Further PetroMENA has in a bondholders meeting proposed to defer the required equity
increase of mUSD 50 in the rig owning entity PetroRig Il according to the bond loan
agreement due to the fact that the yard has accepted postponement of the mUSD 105
instalment until delivery in January 2010. Such approval has not been given.

As the bondholders and PetroMENA have not reached a final agreement regarding the
conditions for the First Priority Debt, the company has not been able to secure complete
financing for PetroRig I, and has received notice of default for bond loans from Norsk
Tillitsmann, the loan trustee for bond loans in PetroMENA group. The company reject
that any default exist. Due to the default notice from Norsk Tillitsmann, Lloyds has
withdrawn the loan commitment of mUSD 600.




PetroMENA has received a MOU for sale of all the rigs under construction. Due to the

financial situation in the group, sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig Il seems the most likely
alternative.

The company has recently filed preliminary injunctions both in Singapore and Norway
against enforcement actions initiated by Norsk Tillitsmann on behalf of the bondholders.
Singapore court has decided that the case shall be fully argued after 20 May 2009.
Pending further hearing SS PetroRig I is not to be taken out of Singapore without prior
notice to the court. Oslo court (Oslo Byfogdembete) has dismissed PetroMENA's filing
for preliminary injunction. Based on the court decisions the company will continue its
efforts to secure the companies values for the creditors and its shareholders, hereunder its
claim for damages against the bondholders.

Oslo/Bergen, 28 April 2009

JM GH Stemunen

laus P.To eébnv\ Terje O. Hellebe Gun Marit Stenersen
Chairman of the Board Board member Board member

Leif[Holst - UnniF. Tefre ars MoldestadV -

Boafd member - Board member Managing Director




Petrolia Drilling ASA
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

{Amounts in USD 1 000)

Group
Note 2008 2007
Revenue 1 155 484 131 927
Wage cost 2 11376 7 586
Depreciation 7 31 961 26 604
Impairment of construction contract semi rigs 7 502 059 0
Other operating expenses 3 112 097 58614
Operating result -502 009 39123
Result from investment in joint venture 9 28 451 12 760
Result from associated companies 10 -113 669 -12 476
Interest income 23 6 185 4243
Financial income 23 143 066 54
Interest expenses 23 43 348 22 005
Financial expenses 23 24 405 11 882
Result before taxes -505 729 9817
Tax on result 5 -641 -2 524
Result of the year -506 370 7202
Attributable to:
Shareholders =327 044 7610
Minority interests =179 326 -318
=506 370 7292

Earnings per share for the vesult attributable to the shareholders of the company during the year

(USD per share)
Earnings per share 4 -0,50 0,01
Earnings per share fully diluted 4 -0,50 0,01

The accompanying notes are an integrated part of the financal statements,



Petrolia Drilling ASA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Amounts in USD 1 000)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets

Drilling units

Construction confracts Semi-Rigs
Drilling equipment and other equipment
Land and buildings

[nvestments in joint venture

[nvestment in associated companies

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventory
Trade- and other current receivables

Financial assets at {air value through profit and loss

[nvestment in money market fund
Bank deposits

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

L e e el LY, =]

=

12
11
13
14

The accompanying notes are an integrated part of the financal statements.

As at 31 December

Group
2008 2007
17 344 23090
3694 11223
28 262 28 615
541 118 733933
119 509 105071
2 705 3116
76 827 62 431
34 756 100 425
824 213 1 067 904
327 0
73 795 53 968
871 3483
83 101
127 812 612275
202 888 669 827
1027102 1 737 731




Petrolia Drilling ASA
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET PER. 31.12,

(Amounts in USD 1 000)

As at 31 December
Group
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2008 2007
Equity
Share capital 15 93 568 93 568
Own shares -2 153 -1 464
Share premium fund 123 119 283 552
Other equity not recognised through profit and loss 24 -16 253 -7524
Uncovered loss -182 695 -16 084
15 587 352 049
Minority interests 43 067 202 146
Total equity 58 654 554 194
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Bond loans 16 418 400 908 027
Pension liability 21 433 485
Other non-current liabilities 17 27282 10 084
446 115 918 595
Current liabilities
Short term portion of non-current liabilities 18 438 261 163 969
Trade payables ‘ 20 22 964 15405
Payable tax ' 173 76
Other current liabilities 20 60 936 85490
522 334 264 941

Total liabilities

968 448 1 183 536

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1027 102 1737731

The accompanying notes are an integrated part of the financal statements.

Clild

Terjé Helleba B
Chairman of the Board Board member

U Stemesen

Gunn Marit Stenersen
Board member Board member

“MM l"t |q,_,e{./&{
Unni F. Tefre
Board member

Liars Moldesta
Managing director



Petrolia Drilling ASA Group

Consolidated statement of ehanges in equity
(Amounis i USD 1 (000)

Equity attributable to the company's sharcholders

Other
equity not
recognised
Share through
Share Own  premium profit and Uncovere Minority  Total

Capital  shares fund loss dloss  interesis  equity
Equity 1 January 2007 78 488 197 494 303 <17 682 258 603
Capital increase through contribution in kind 15081 86 564 101 645
Issue expenses covered by share premium fund =506 =506
Remeasurment of shares in associated company -3 989 -1 989
Addition minority share through acquisition 202490 202 490
Purchase/sale of own shares -1 464 -6 643 -8 107
Currency translation differences -3 652 632 =26 -3 652
Available-for-sale financial assels -187 -187
Result of the vear o equity 7610 2318 7292
Equity 31 December 2007 93508  -14064 283552 -7524 -16084 202146 554 195
Equity I January 2008 93 568 -1 464 283 552 -7524 -16084 202146 554 195
Capital increase in subsidiary 23 049 23049
lague expenses in gubsidiary -688 -648 -1336
Remeasurment of shares in subsidiary 4053 -2132 192]
Purchase/sale of own shares =690 =690
Result of the year 1o equity 160 434 166610 -179326 -506 370
Currency translation differences -12 093 <22 -12115
Equity 31 Deecember 2008 93 568 -2 153 123119 -16 253 -182 695 43 067 58 654

Per 31 December 2007 the company owns 3 450 024 own shares. The shares have been purchased at an average purchase cost of NOK 2.29 per share.
Per3l D ber 2008 ihe ¢ v owis 5 250 024 own shares. The shares have been purchased at an average purchase cost of NOK 2.21 per share.

The accompanying notes are an infegrated part of the financal statements,



Petrolia Drilling ASA

Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December

(Amounts in LIS 1 000) Group
Note 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Result before taxes -505 729 9817
Prepaid taxes in the period 842 70
Gain from sale of equipiment -2 934 -156
Loss/gain from sale of current assets =70 0
Depreciation 7 31 961 26 604
Impairment of rigs 1,7 502 059 0
Change in net pension liability 58 448
Change in trade receivables -10 990 -11 994
Change in trade payables 7 558 8108

Accruals and items classified as financing/investment
Result from investment in joint venture

Result from investment in associated companies
Dividend from joint venture

Unrealised foreign currency loss/gain

41 554 31617

9 -28 451 -12 760
10 113 669 12 476
9 12 424 0
-130 310 48 051

Net cash generated from operating activities

31 641 112 280

Cash flows from investing activities

Proeeeds from sale of property. plant and equipment
Purchase of operating equipment

Cash flow from acquisition

7 4610 1193
7 -357214  -157 245
4239 378976

Proceeds from sale of shares and investments in other companies -283 1151

Investment in shares in associated companies
Investment in shares in other companies
Proceeds from sales of liquid reserves
Purchase of liquid reserves

10 -47 999
-8 702 -55 982
18 0
0 56 808

Net cash used in investing activities

-405 331 224 901

Cash flows from [inancing uctivities

Proceeds from bond loan

Proceeds from short-term loan

Repayment of long-term loans

Interest paid on bond loans

Purchase of own shares/issue costs

Payment of debt financing costs

Increased capital through subsidiaries (minority)
Repayment of long term/short term borrowings

94609 328344
6070 -7 656
-139 898 4091
48731 -42449

-690 -1 819

6 -5 238 -10 218
23 049 0

-33 754 -5 540

Net cash used in financing activities

-104 582 256 570

Net cash flow of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Exchange gains (loss) on cash and cash equivalents
Cash balance at December 31

-478 273 593 751

14 612 275 18 524
-6 190 0

14 127 812 612 275

Specification of cash and cash equivalents at period end
Bank deposits
Whereof restricted bank accounts is

14 127 812 612 275
14 97 769 384910

The accompanying notes are an integrated part of the financal statements.



Petrolia Drilling ASA
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 2008

Accounting policies and general information

General Information

Petrolia Drilling ASA was established 13 March, 1997. The consolidated financial statements for the
accounting year 2008 comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the group™)
and the group’s share of a joint venture and associated companies.

Through the shareholding of 51.5% in PetroMENA ASA the group owns the semi submersible
drilling rig SS "Petrolia" and has another three semi submersible drilling rigs under construction.
Through its shareholding of 39.95% in the associate Petrojack, the group has exposure to the jack-up
segment. Also the group owns a 50% share of the joint venture Venture Drilling AS.

The group’s activities are directed towards investments in and charter of drilling vessels for offshore,
deepwater oil and gas exploration and development drilling. Further on, the company is hiring out
drilling equipment and test strings, including accessories, to oil companies, oil service companies and
drilling contractors.

Petrolia Drilling ASA is registered and domiciled in Norway.
The company is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange.
The annual financial statements were adopted by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2009.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of Petrolia Drilling ASA have been prepared in compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) as endorsed by the EU.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
following modification: Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are discussed below,

The accounting year follows the calendar year, The income statement is by nature.
Interpretations effective in 2008
The following interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2008 but are not relevant to the group’s operations:
e [FRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and

their interaction’
e [FRIC 11, ‘IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions’

Interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant
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The following interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2008 but they are considered not relevant to the group’s operations:

e [FRIC 12, ‘Service concession arrangements’; and
e [FRIC 13, ‘Customer loyalty programmes’.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
and are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later
periods, but the group has not early adopted them and they are not expected to have any material
impact on the group’s financial statements.

e [FRS 8 ‘Operating segments’

e |AS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’

s 1AS | (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’

o 1AS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, and IAS 1 (Amendment),
‘Presentation of financial statements’ — ‘Puttable financial instruments and obligations
arising on liquidation’

e IFRS 1 (Amendment) ‘First time adoption of IFRS’, and 1AS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’

e [AS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’

e [FRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’

IFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations’ (and
consequential amendment to IFRS 1, ‘First-time adoption”)

e [AS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in associates’ (and consequential amendments to [AS 32,
‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’, and IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’)

e IAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint ventures’ (and consequential amendments to IAS 32
and IFRS 7)

s IAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’

e IAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’

IAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’

e There are a number of minor amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’, IAS 10, *Events
after the reporting period’, IAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and IAS 34, “Interim financial reporting’,
which are part of the IASB’s annual improvements project published in May 2008 (not
addressed above). These amendments are unlikely to have an impact on the group’s accounts
and have therefore not been analysed in detail.

e [FRIC 16, *Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’

IAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, plant and equipment’.

Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for
the group’s operations

The following interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2009 or later periods
but are not relevant for the group’s operations:

e |FRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’
e IAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’
e IAS 20 ‘Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government assistance’
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IAS 29, ‘Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies’
IAS 40, ‘Investment property’

IAS 41, “Agriculture’

IFRIC 15, ‘Agreements for construction of real estates’

Consolidation principles

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement at the time of acquisition.

Summary of the companies of the group: Per 31.12.2008 the consolidated companies are presented in
the balance sheet as follows:
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Owner Share- Objective, activity, business office

holding

Shares owned directly by the parent

company

Petrolia Drilling IT AS 100% Holding company for Petrolia Rigs AS and Petrolia
Services AS. The company is registered and domiciled
in Norway.

Petrolia Drilling Ltd. === A company registered on Virgin Island. The shares are
controlled by a trust in Jersey. Petrolia Drilling ASA is
“beneficial owner” of the trust.

Petrolia Invest AS 100% Owner of shares in the associate Larsen Rig Ltd. The
company is registered and domiciled in Norway.

PetroMENA ASA - group 51.5% Owner of the rig SS "Petrolia” and has three semi
submersible rigs under construction at the Jurong
shipyard in Singapore. The company is registered and
domiciled in Norway.,

Shares owned by PetroMENA ASA:

PetroRig I Pte Ltd 100% Building one semi-submersible at Jurong Shipyard Pte
Ltd in Singapore. The company is registered and
domiciled in Singapore.

PetraRig Il Pte Lid 100% Building one semi-submersible at Jurong Shipyard Pte
Ltd in Singapore. The company is registered and
domiciled in Singapore.

PetroRig Il Pte Lid 100% Building one semi-submersible at Jurong Shipyard Pte
Ltd in Singapore. The company is registered and
domiciled in Singapore.

Petromena Ltd 100% Owner of the second generation drilling unit 55
“Petrolia”.

Shares owned by PDR [T AS:

Petrolia Rigs AS 100% Sold the drilling rig SS Petrolia to PetroMENA in
2007. The company is registered and domiciled in
Norway.

Petrolia Services AS 100% Owner of drilling equipment. The company is
registered and domiciled in Norway.

Shares owned by Petrolia Services AS:

Independent Oil Tools AS 100% Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment. The
company is registered and domiciled in Norway.

Shares owned by Independent Oil Tools AS

Independent Tool Pool AS 100% Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The
company is registered and domiciled in Norway.

Premium Casing Services Pty Ltd 100% Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The
company is registered and domiciled in Australia.

SM Industriservice AS, merged with 10T 100% Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

AS in 2008 company is registered and domiciled in Norway.
Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

Independent Oil Tools BV 100% company is registered and domiciled in Holland,

Shares owned by 10T BV Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

Independent Oil Tools Dosco BY 51% company is registered and domiciled in Holland.
Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

Independent Oil Tools Dosco Srl 100% company is registered and domiciled in Romania.
Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

Caspian Oilfield Services 51% company is registered and domiciled in Azerbaijan.

Shares owned by Premium Casing Services Hiring out- and service of drilling equipment The

Premium Casing Services Pty Lid 100% company is registered and domiciled in New Zealand.
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

The group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with equity

owners of the group. For purchases from minority interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to minority interests are also recorded in equity.

(ii) Joint venture and associates

By joint venture is meant financial activity controlled through agreement between two or more parties
who jointly control the activity. Joint venture implies that no party alone has controlling influence.
Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in joint venture and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The group’s investments in joint venture and associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The group’s share of its joint venture’s/ associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the group’s share of losses in a joint venture or an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the joint venture/associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture/associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its joint venture/associates are eliminated to
the extent of the group’s interest in the joint venture/associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of joint venture/associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in joint venture/associates are recognised in the
income statement.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical market (segment) is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

The group operates within two business segments, hiring out of drilling vessels (Drilling) and hiring
out of drilling equipment (Oilfield services). The drilling units are offered for contract spread on
several geographical markets. Oilfield services is hiring out drilling equipment and manpower from
offices in Australia, New Zealand, Netherlands, Romania, Dubai and Singapore among others.
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Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). Petrolia Drilling ASA has with effect from 01.01.2008 changed presentation currency
from NOK to USD. All comparative figures have been converted and presented in USD for
information purposes.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within “financial income/
financial expense’,

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that balance sheet
income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates
o all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Rigs and drilling equipment

Rigs and drilling equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Periodical maintenance is recognised in the balance sheet as part of the drilling unit and depreciated
straight-line over the period till next maintenance, normally after 60 months. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on rigs and drilling equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
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An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on sales and disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘revenue’ in the income statement.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are recognised net in the balance sheet, i.e. paid yard instalments are
recognised in the balance sheet as payments are made. Settled instalments are classified as non-
current asset in the balance sheet.

Construction expenses are carried and classified as non-current assets. Construction expenses include
contractual expenses and expenses involved in supervision in the construction period. Contract
expenses include expenses that can be related to the project for the period from entering into the
contract till final completion of the ordered work. Net interest for construction debt financing in the
contract period is also included.

The construction and financing contracts are subject to the contracts and delivery of rigs taking place
to company domiciled in Singapore.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Borrowing costs

Success fee related to the establishment of loan commitments is recognised as an asset for the period
from the loan commitment is granted and till the loan is drawn. When the loan is drawn, the success
fees are reflected as an acquisition cost and net against the carrying amount of the loan.
Subsequently, this amount is recognized as interest expense using the effective interest rate over the
term of the loan.

Carrying amount is subject to annual impairment test and recognised at acquisition cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non
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financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. The group does not make use of hedging accounting according to IAS 39,
therefore all financial derivates are recognised at fair value when changes in value are recognised in
the income statement.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as trade and other current receivables, investment in money market fund
and bank deposits in the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss’ category are presented in the income statement within “financial income/financial expenses”, in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the income statement as part of financial income when the group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Other change in recognised value of monetary securities and value changes of equity instruments
classified as available for sale are recognised directly against equity. When securities classified as
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available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
through profit or loss are included in the income statement as “financial income/financial expenses’.

Fair value of quoted investments is based on current bid price.

The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For shares classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below purchase cost is considered as an indicator that the share
is impaired. If any such objective evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on shares and corresponding instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within ‘other operating
expenses’. When a trade or other receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against ‘other operating expenses’ in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital and premium
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Expenses directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs net of income taxes is
deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs.

Accrued interest expenses are classified as current portion of non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Leases

Finance leases

The group is reporting finance leases as assets and liabilities in the financial statements, equivalent to
the cost price of the asset or, if the lower, the present value of the cash flow of the lease. By
calculation of present value of the lease the implicit interest expense in the lease is applied, when
determinable. If not determinable the company’s marginal market borrowing rate is used. Direct
expenses connected to the leases are included in the cost price of the asset. Monthly lease amounts
are split in an interest element and a repayment element. The interest expense is allocated to various
periods so that the interest rate is the same for all periods.

The asset that is included in a finance lease is depreciated. Depreciation period is consistent for
corresponding assets owned by the group. If there is uncertainty whether the company will take over
the asset at expiration of the lease contract the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the term of the
lease contract and depreciation period for corresponding assets owned by the group.

If a "sale and back-lease™ transaction results in a finance lease, a possible profit will be deferred and
recognised over the period of the lease.

Operational leases

Leases where the main risk is on the hand of the contracting party, are classified as operational
leases. Lease payments are classified as operational expense and recognised in the income statement
over the contract period.

In case that a “sale and back-lease” transaction should result in an operational lease and it is evident
that the transaction has been carried out at fair value, a possible profit or loss will be recognised in
the income statement as the transaction is accomplished. Should the selling price be below fair value
a possible profit or loss will be recognised directly, except for the situation that this involves future
lease payments below market price. In that case the profit/loss is amortised over the period of the
lease. If the selling price is above fair value, the excess price will be amortised over estimated period
of use for the asset.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in equity.



Petrolia Drilling ASA
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 2008

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Pension obligations

The pension schemes of the group are funded through payments to insurance companies, determined
by periodic actuarial calculations, The group has both defined contribution plans and defined benefit
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plan is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets
adjusted for not recognised actuarial gains and losses and not recognised past-service costs. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in the statement of recognised income and expense in the period in
which they arise.

Changes in the pension benefits are recognised immediately as expense or income, unless the changes
to the pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further
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payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Contingencies and allocations

Contingencies and allocations are recognised when there is a valid claim (legal or expected) as a
consequence of previous events and it can be made probable (more than 50%) that a settlement will
take place owing to the debt and the debt may be measured reliably. Contingencies and allocations
are estimated at each balance sheet date and the recognized amount reflects best estimate of the
liability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for rental of drilling
units and drilling equipment. The revenue is recognised on the basis of day rates and actually accrued
time. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the group. The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Mobilization expenses

Mobilisation income and expense are distributed over the mobilisation period. If the expenses exceed
the income in the mobilisation period, expenses corresponding to the income in the mobilisation
period are recognised in the income statement. Excess expenses are recognised in the balance sheet
and distributed over the duration of the contract.

Related-party transactions

Information as to which persons and companies that are considered as related parties has been stated
in note to the consolidated financial statements. Agreements, transactions and outstanding accounts
with related parties are described in the same note.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared according to the indirect method. The indirect method
involves reporting gross cash flow from investment and financing activities, while the accounting
result is reconciled against net cash flow from operational activities. Cash and cash equivalents
comprise bank deposits and other current, liquid investments which immediately and at insignificant
exchange rate risk can be converted into known cash amounts and with due dates of less than three
months from purchase date.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the result of the group on a time weighed average
number of ordinary shares for the period.
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Events after the balance sheet date

New information about the position of the group existing at the balance sheet date regarding the
accounting period have been taken into account in the financial statements according to standard
estimation principles. Events after the balance sheet date are referred to in note 25.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The group uses financial instruments as bond loans, forward contracts, financial lease and borrowing
from related parties. The purpose of these financial instruments is to provide capital for investments
necessary for the group’s activity. Further on the group has financial instruments like trade
receivables, prepayments and trade payables which are directly connected to the current operations of
the group. The group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. In
periods the group invests liquid assets in available-for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss.

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk, currency
risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the group’s
financial performance.

The group’s management is currently monitoring the risk related to credit, interest rate, liquidity and
foreign exchange. The group is subject to a balances exposure through income and expenses in USD
and NOK and financing in USD and NOK. In addition the group is subject to a balanced exposure
through fixed and floating rate of interest from its financing which limits the liquidity risk. The credit
risk which the company is exposed to is acceptable.

Credit risk

The group is primarily exposed to credit risk related to trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments to yard for construction of rigs. The maximum risk exposure is represented by the
carrying value of rigs under construction referred to in note 7 and carrying value of trade receivables
and other receivables referred to in note 12,

The group has few customers as the rigs are on hire on long term contracts with fixed day-rates. 55
Petrolia entered into a 913 days contract with Pemex Producion y Exploracion, the Mexican state
owned petroleum company. Pemex is the one of the world’s largest producers of crude oil. The
equipment in the oilfield services segment is mainly on rental through Certified Oilfield Rentals
throughout the world. In 2009 Petrorig I will start a 5 year contract with Petrobras, the largest listed
company in South America. The group’s revenues are limited to a number of transactions and
customers and therefore credit risk is transparent.

The group has credit risk related to its customers including outstanding receivables to arise from the
contract and committed transactions. Management does not expect any losses from non-performance
by its debtors.

Interest rate risk

The group is exposed to interest rate risk through its financing activities (cf. note 16 and 17). Part of
the interest-bearing liabilities is based on floating rates which implies that the group is exposed to
changes in the interest rate level.
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The group’s interest rate risk management aims at reducing the interest expenses at the same time as
the volatility of future interest payments is kept within acceptable frames. Per 31.12.2008
approximately 70% of the group’s borrowings were based on fixed rate of interest.

The table below illustrates the group’s volatility related to potential changes in the interest rate level.
The calculation includes all interest-bearing instruments and elucidates the volatility in result and
equity to changes in interest rate level assuming the same capital structure throughout the year as
capital structure at the end of the accounting year.

Sensitivity for changes in interest rate level
Changes in Impact on Impact
(amounts in USD 1000) interest rate result on equity
level in basie before tax
items
2008 50 =763 -549
2007 50 1251 901

Further information regarding the interest rate conditions of the group’s financing is given in note 16,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group is not able to meet its financial liabilities as they fall due. The
group’s strategy of handling credit risk is to have sufficient liquidities at all times to pay any liability
on maturity, in both normal and extraordinary circumstances.

Unused part of bond loan issued in connection with the construction of PetroRig 11 is deposited on
suspense account for the financing of instalments on the construction contract. The group has placed
the capital from issuance of bonds in NOK and USD while the settlements for the rigs are nominated
in USD and SGD.

In December 2007 the Group established a mUSD 200 bank financing facility for each of the rigs
with Lloyds TSB Bank (“Lloyds™), equalling the maximum amount of First Priority Debt allowed
under the Bond Loan Agreements.

However, the undrawn mUSD 200 credit facilities for each of the new buildings will not be sufficient
to fully fund each rig; consequently there is a funding gap to bring the units into operation.
PetroMENA has at length explored various alternatives to meet this funding requirement. The bank
financing market has been extremely challenging for months, as banks are generally unable or
unwilling to assume new commitments.

PetroMENA has discussed with Lloyds and another bank to jointly provide the requested amount
needed to take delivery of Petrorig | and get the rig into operation. The banks provided the Company
with an indicative term sheet for a mUSD 300 credit facilities related to Petrorig I, but would not
finalize the loan facility, unless consent from both Bondholders was given. Such consent was not
given by the Bondholders, instead PetroMENA has received default notices from Norsk Tillitsmann,
the loan trustee for all bond loans in PetroMENA group. PetroMENA rejects that any default exists,
and hence no change has been made in classification of bond loans in relation to the above. Due to
the default notice from Norsk Tillitsmann, Lloyds has withdrawn the loan commitment of mUSD
600.
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PetroMENA has received memorandums of understanding (MOU’s) related to sale of all rigs under
construction. The Company is of the opinion that the preferred alternative for both creditors and
current shareholders is sale of SS PetroRig I and SS PetroRig I1.

Meanwhile, a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU™) has been signed for SS PetroRig | for mUSD
450 and SS PetroRig I for mUSD 425 respectively. A potential sale of SS PetroRig I and SS
PetroRig Il requires early redemption of the 9.75 % bond loan and partial redemption of the 10.85 %
bond loan. In the event of sale of SS PetroRig I and SS PetroRig Il PetroMENA shall redeem the 9.75
% bond loan at a price equal to 107 % of par value. In the event of sale of SS PetroRig I or S§
PetroRig I1, PetroMENA shall redeem mUSD 60 for each rig sold, in total mUSD 126 at a price equal
to 105 % of par value.

The last payment to Jurong regarding SS PetroRig | equals mUSD 233 and regarding S5 PetroRig 11
equals mUSD 243, In addition PetroMENA will incur various expenses in connection with a potential
sale of SS PetroRig I and SS PetroRig II. Larsen Oil & Gas is entitled to a sales commission equal to
4 % of total consideration in the event of sale of SS PetroRig I or SS PetroRig I1.

Total net proceeds from a possible sale of PetroRig I and PetroRig II following redemption according
to bond loan agreements is set forth below:

(amounts in MUSD 1 000)

PetroRigl  PetroRig 11 Total
Offer price 450 425 875
Last payment to Jurong -233 -243 -476
Sales commission -18 -17 -35
Early redemption 9.75 % bond -153 -153 =306
Early redemption 10.85 % bond -63 -63 -126
Net proceeds -17 -51 -68

The gross proceeds from a possible sale of SS PetroRig I and SS PetroRig 11 at mUSD 450 and
mUSD 425 respectively will not cover payments to Jurong, early redemption according to bond loan
agreements, other expenses and sales fee to Larsen Oil & Gas. In order to reach an acceptable
solution for shareholders and bondholders, the Board and the Managing Director will ask for
approval by bondholders to accept full redemption of the 9.75 % bond at a price equal to 100% of par
value, and redemption of in total mUSD 40 of the 10.85 % bond at a price equal to 100 % of par
value. If bondholders accept the solution described above, PetroMENA will receive estimated net
proceeds of mUSD 38 excluding various expenses from the sale of PetroRig I and II. For the
avoidance of doubt, please be aware that the solution described above is subject to approval by
bondholders and whether such approval is given or not is uncertain.

Total expected net proceeds based on redemption as described in the section above is set fourth
below:

(amounts in MUSD 1 000)

PetroRigl  PetroRig II Total
Offer price 450 425 875
Last payment to Jurong -233 -243 -476
Sales commission -18 -17 -35
Early redemption 9.75 % bond -143 -143 -286
Early redemption 10.85 % bond -20 -20 -40

Net proceeds 36 2 38
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Based on the assumption that the MOU for rig I and I leads to a sale of these rigs, and that
bondholders approves such a sale and accept full redemption of the 9.75 % bond loan and partial
redemption of the 10.85 % bond loan, PetroMENA will not require external financing before delivery
of PetroRig I1T in January 2010.

The Board is aware of the challenges and uncertainties regarding the remaining funding, and
irrespective of whether a sale of PetroRig I and II is completed, PetroMENA will have a significant
unfunded construction program related to PetroRig I1I. PetroMENA will work actively towards
selling PetroRig I11 if not able to secure additional financing in order to take delivery of PetroRig 111
and bring the unit into operation. The Company will seek to establish financing for the remaining
instalments related to construction of PetroRig Il from Lloyds and/or other banks in order to take
deliver of PetroRig 111 and recover shareholder values through future cash flow from the five year
drilling contract entered into with Pemex, representing a total value of MUSD 942, Possible funding
alternatives are to secure similar bank debt structures as the new PetroRig I facility or to sell the rig.
Alternatively, the Company could issue new equity at terms acceptable to current shareholders if the
market allows for that going forward.

Assuming a sale of SS PetroRig I and SS PetroRig I1, the Company estimates that the next capital
requirement will be in connection with the delivery of 8S PetroRig Il in January 2010. The Company
will work actively towards selling SS PetroRig Il if required to avoid significant dilution of
shareholders value.

Please be advised that PetroMENA has not secured complete financing for the construction program
with Jurong. If PetroMENA is not able to secure required funding from banks or from other sources
of external financing, PetroMENA will not be able to service its liabilities as described in the
Director’s Report.

The table below states maturity profile of financial liabilities recognised per 31.12.2008:

Amounts in USD 1000

Per 31 December 2008 <1 year |-2 years 2-5 years =5 years Total
Trade payables 22 964 22 964
Interest 14 533 14 533
Bond loans 420 159 129 600 112 875 187172 849 806
Other long-term debt 7940 13811 13 471 35222
Other current liabilities 61 109 61109

Retirement benefit obligations have been exempted in the above profile.
In addition there are payments to the yard of the last instalments of the construction program, cf. note

T
Per 31 December 2007 <1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years =5 years Total
Trade payables 15 405 15 405
Bonds 133025 26400 309 193 572 434 1 041 052
Interest 28 091 28 091
Other long term liabilities 2 854 10 084 12 938

Other current liabilities 85 566 85 566
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Retirement benefit obligations have been exempted in the above profile.

Further information regarding non-current loan and liabilities in connection with financial lease
contracts is stated in note 16 and 17.

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk exposure mainly relates to the program of new constructions of the group.
The new construction program has been contracted in USD and parts of the financing are nominated
in NOK. The group has reduced the foreign exchange risk by the capital collected through issuance of
bond loan nominated in NOK for the financing of the new construction program, partly being
invested in USD. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the group had mNOK 4,100 in bond loans
nominated in NOK.

The group is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations connected to the value of NOK relatively to USD
due to the fact that the group has mainly income and operating expenses in USD while parts of the
financing is nominated in NOK. Future revenues and expenses connected to the rigs will be
nominated in USD and net cash flow in NOK will depend on future exchange rate of USD.

Rigs under construction are also exposed to exchange rate changes as the secondary market trading of
rigs normally is executed in USD. Changes in foreign exchange rates will have an impact on the
company’s liquid reserves after redemption of bond loans connected to possible sale of rigs.

As of 31 December 2008, the group had mUSD 544.8 net debt nominated in NOK, while the
corresponding figure for 2007 was mUSD 470.4. Consequently the NOK exchange rate exposure has
been increased during the year as illustrated in the table below.

The table below states impact of fluctuations in the exchange rate of NOK on financial instruments in
NOK at the end of the accounting year.

Changes in the Impact on result Impact on

exchange rate of NOK before taxes equity

2008 5% 27239 19612
5% -27 239 -19612

2007 5% 23 522 16 936
-5 % -23 522 -16 936

Capital structure and equity

The main objectives of the group when monitoring capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to
maintain a good credit rating and belonging favourable loan terms from the lenders in accordance
with the group’s operations. Through maintaining a satisfactory debt ratio the group is supporting the
current operations and maximizing the value of the group’s shares accordingly.

The group is managing the capital structure and making necessary adjustments based on a continuous
assessment of the financial conditions that the enterprise is subject to and the present short- and
medium term prospects. The capital structure is managed through repurchase of treasury shares,
reduction of share capital or issuing new shares.
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(amounts in USD 1 000) 2008 2007

Total liabilities 968 448 1183536
Equity of majority 15 587 352 049
Debt ratio 62.13 3.36

Fair value estimation
The following of the group’s assets have been assessed at fair value: “Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss™,

IFair value of financial assets classified as ““at fair value through profit and loss” has been assessed
with reference to the quoted price at the balance sheet date.

Carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value owing to the fact that these
instruments have short maturity. Correspondingly, carrying value of trade receivables and trade

payables approximate fair value as established at normal terms.

Fair value of non-current liabilities is assessed by means of quoted market prices, last available

selling price or the use of interest terms for liabilities with similar repayment period and credit risk.

Fair market value of investment in the bonds is based on Norwegian Securities Dealer Association
assessment of value for tax purpose yearend 2008, available on the website http://www.nfmf.no/.

Below is a comparison of book values and fair values of the financial instruments of the group:

2008 2007

Book value | Fair value/ | Book value | Fair value/
(amounts in USD 1000) quoted price quoted price
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 127 895 127 895 612376 612 376
Trade receivables 35084 35084 24 094 24 094
Investments of fair value through profit and 871 871 3483 3483
loss
Investment in associates- quoted shares 1) 10 866 10 866 100 425 85381
Investment in associates non-quoted shares 2) 23 890 23 890 0 0
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 22 964 22 964 15 405 15 405
Interest bearing liabilities
Bonds 834 188 246 453 | 039 463 1072316
Liabilities from financial leasing contracts 30392 30392 12 160 12 160
Borrowing element in forward contract 0 0 20 260 20 260

1) Fair value is based on quoted price per 31.12.08, cf, note 10.

2) The investments in non quoted shares have been impaired in 2008 to estimated fair value

based on uncertainties with regards to the current situation in the financial markets, cf. note

10.
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Financial instruments by category

Assets at fair
Loans and value through  Available for

receivables the p/l sale Total

31.12.2008

Assets as per balance sheet -
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 1) 53095 53 095
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 871 871
Money market fund 83 83
Bank deposits 127 812 127 812
Total 130 990 871 - 181 861

1) Prepayments of 20 700 are excluded from the trade and other receivables balance as this analysis is required only
for finaneial instruments.

Liabilities at Other financial
fair value  liabilities at

through the p/l amortised cost Total
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) 2) 834 189 834 189
Finance lease liabilities 2) 30392 30392
Other non=current liabilitics 4 830 4 830
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities 3) 83 509 83 569
Total - 952 980 952 980

2) the categories in this disclosure are determined by 1AS 39, Finance leases are mostly outside the scope of TAS 39,
but they remain within the scope of IFRS 7. Therefore finance leases have been shown separately.
3) Public duties are excluded from the trade payables balance, as this is required only for financial instruments,

Assels at Tair
Loans and  value through ~ Available for

receivables the p/l sale Total

31.12.2007

Assets as per balance sheet -
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 1) 37 264 37 264
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 3483 3483
Money market fund 101 101
Bank deposits 612275 612275
Total 649 640 3483 - 653 123

1) Prepayments of 16 704 are excluded from the trade and other receivables balance as this analysis is required only
for financial instruments,

Liabilities at Other financial
fair value  liabilities at

through the p/l_amortised cost Total
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) 2) 1 039523 1 039 523
Finance lease liabilities 2) 12 160 12 160
Other non-current liabilities 1183 1183
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities 3) 100 567 100 567
Total - 1 153 433 1 153 433

2) the categories in this disclosure are determined by 1AS 39, Finance leases are mostly outside the scope of TAS 39,
but they remain within the scope of IFRS 7. Therefore finance leases have been shown separately.
3) Public duties are excluded from the trade payables balance, as this is required only for financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of
cashgenerating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates.

ii) Income taxes

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

iii) Impairment of rigs, construction contracts and intangible assets

The group tests annually whether the rigs, drilling equipment, construction contracts and intangible
assets have suffered any impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

iv) Impairment of investments in joint venture and associates

The group tests annually whether its investments in joint venture and associates have suffered any
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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[NOTE 1| SEGMENT INFORMATION

Per 31 December 2008 the group is operating within two main segments:

Drilling

The drilling rig 55 Petralia” has been operating in the Gulf of Mexico where she started her 913 days contract with Pemex Exploracion ¥ Produceion February 3rd 2008, In addition

PetroMenn ASA has three semi submiersible rigs under construetion at the Jurong Shipyard in Singapore. Petrajack ASA has had one jackup on time charter hire with Saipem and one jackup rig

under construction at the Jurong Shipyard, which was delivered in January 2009

Shire of DS "Deep Venture”

The group owns i 50 % share of DS "Deep Venture” through Venture Drilling AS. On behalf’ of Venture Drilling AS Larsen Oil & Gas Lid has entered into a contrnet with

ExxonMobil for an 18 month assignment for the drilling vessel in West Affica. Deep Venture started on this contract 30 June 2007, The contract was recently extended, and DS Deep

Venture will be engaged for Maersk Ol Angola until July 25 2009, st & day rate of USD 425,000 after witholding tax. Venture Drilling has agreed to a further 18 months contract with
Maersk Oil Angola at a day rate of USD 495,000 after witholding tns. These day rates are base rates, i.e minimum rates depending on where the drillship will operate under the eontract

Contrasts made for the rigs under construstion in PetroMenn ASA
Larsen Ol & Gas Ltd in Aberdeen has signed two drilling contracts on behall of PetroRig | Pe Lid and PetroRig 11 Pte Lid with Petrobas America Inc, and Petroleo Brasileiro 5. A

(Petrabras), The drilling contracts, which are for five years, was entered into in August 2006 and January 2007 and the value of the

to

ly mUSD 700 and

mUSD 645 exelusive of options, The rigs shall operate In Brazilian and US-Gulf waters. Start-up of the contracts is scheduled from delivery of the rigs in 2000 In the event of possible
sale of PetroRig | and PetroRig 11, the contracts will follow the rigs. Together with the manager Larsen Oil & Gas AS a 5 year drilling contract for PetroRig 11 Pre Lid was signed
with Pemex in 2007 at o value of npproximately MUSD 942, The rig shall operate in the Mexican Gulf: Start-up of the contract will take place after delivery of the rig in 2010

Oillield Services

Oilfield services is hiring out drilling equipment and manpower from offices in Norway, Netherlands, Romanin, Australia, New Zealand, Singapore and Dubai, among others.

Unalloeated

During 2008, the group has been engaged in oil and minerals exploration through its share in the associate Petroresources.

The group's primary reporting format is business segments,

The segmeni resulis for 2008 nre ns follows:

Diilling Oilfield services Unnllocated Total
(amounts | USD 1 000} YTD 0§ YTD 07 YTD 08 YTD 07 YTD 08 YTD o7 YTD 08 YTno?
Operating revenue 73 684 84 535 B1 554 47392 246 0 153 484 131927
ERITDA 3084 41023 34007 24 703 -5 08O 0 jzonl 65 727
ERIT =501 740 35015 4811 4108 =5 DBO 0 =502 009 39123
EBITDA % 4% 49 % 42% 52% 2065 % 0% 21% 50 %
EBIT % 681 % a1% 6% 9% -2065 % 0% -323 % 30%
Met finance expenses &) 498 =29 590
Share of result from joint venture 28 451 12 760 28 45] 12 760
Share of result from associntes =110 550 -12476 =3 110 0 =113 669 -12476
Resull before 1axes -505 729 a817
Tax charge 641 -2 524
Result of the year -506 370 7202
Other items included in the segment resulis el note 7, are:
Camounts | LISE | 000) 01,01 - 31.12.2008 01,01-31,12,2007
Oilfield Oilfield

Drilling services Unallocated Group Drilling services Unalloeated Group
Depreciation 2765 29195 0 31 960 6009 20 5038 0 26 604
Impairment of construction contracs -502 059 0 [} =502 059 0 i} ] 0
Sogment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible nssets, trade receivables, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents,
Capital expenditure comprises additions to praperty, plant and equipment (note 7) and intangible assets (note 6), including additions resulting from acquisiiions
Sepment assets and linbilities at 31 December 2008 and capital expenditure for the year then ended:
(mmouta § USD | 000) 0101 = 31.12,2008 01.01-31.12.2007

Oilfield Ollfield

Drilling services Unallocated Group Drilling services Unalloeated Group
Asgels 786 168 188 291 520643 1027 102 1 559 896 177 B35 0 1737731
Linbilities 8217 680 68 735 82033 968 448 1 118 445 65 092 0 1 183 536
Capital expenditure (note 7) 311823 70 685 382 508 157 708 139 842 0 897 550
Following the sale of S8 Petrolia in 2007, some of the companies within the group are no longer reporting as drilling companies. For 2008 they are presented as unalloeated
due ta the fuct that they are holding companies.
The group’s two business segments operate in the following main geographical areas:
Revenue 2008 2007
{amonnts in USD | 000}
Morway 11 361 8 745
Europe outside Norway 20 966 91 687
Asla and Australia 47 286 31 438
Gulf of Mexico 73 580 37
Other countries 2201 0
Total 155 484 131927
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Assels 2008 2007
(umounts in LS 1 000}
Norway 3137 82703
Europe outside Norwny 57020 9987
Asin and Australin *) 597 904 749 38|
Gulf of Mexico (S8 Petrolin) 28422 28 664
Other countries 4 877 0
Total 691 594 R70 735
*) Whereofl rigs under construction amount to TUSD 841 118
[NOTE2 WAGES AND REMUNERATIONS ETC, |
Wage costs 2008 2007
(nmounts in L1503 1 000)
Wages 9279 6757
Payroll tax B63 626
Pension eosts 625 178
Other contributions 6089 25
Total 11376 7 586
Avernge number of man-labour years of the group has been 218 in 2008, The group has employees through the subsidiary Independent Qil Tools AS (group) and in PetroMENA Lid
There are no employees in the remaining companics of the group, No loan or guaranices have been granted to the Board of Directors, employees or other related parties
The Managing Director of Petrolin Drilling ASA is employed in Larsen Oil & Gas AS. For the fiscal year 2007 the Annunl General Meeting granted the Managing Director o bonus
amounting 1o TUSD 385
Board of Directors’ fee
The following fee has been paid to the members of the board 2008 2007
{nmeniita i LS 1000)
Klaus P, Tollefsen - Chairman of the boord 192 5l
Tetje Hellebo - Board member 192 38
Leil Holst - Board member 192 EH
Uniii Tefve - Board member, 6 months 34 0
Gun Marit Stenersen - Board member, 6 months i EE] 1]
Berge Gerdi Larsen 0 38
Total 645 166
Directors' fees for 2007 have been paid in 2008 in accordance with ordinary resolution
The group has a busi i I with Larsen Oil & Gas AS. For the fiscal year 2007 the Annual General Meeting hos granted the Manager a bonus of TUSD 385,
Auditors fee
Recognised Fee for nuditors of the group nnd other audiiors: 2008 2007
(amaiints in USD | 000}
Audit 510 202
Certification services 7 14
Tax nssistance by auditors of the group 1) 131 238
Other services by auditors of the group 2) 86 260
Total auditor's fee 73 713
! Ineluding TUSD 179 regarding tax assistance related to prospectus and twe information memorandums in 2007
Y Including TUSD 137 regarding other services related to prospeetus and two information memorandums in 2007
|noTES SPECIFICATION OF OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES |
Other aperating expenses comprise the following main items: 2008 2007
Camiounts in USE | 000y
Operating expenses 55 “Petralia” 24 473 21 86l
Maobilisation expenses 85 Petrolin 7883 6 087
Maobilisation expenses for rigs under constiuction 16450 0
Insurance 4228 3904
Fees to external advisors, lawyers, auditors 5416 3763
Manngement services 13997 5524
Cost of goods sold 31483 12 168
Other operating expel & 166 3308
Tatal operaling expenses 112 097 SRGIS
E4 EARNI ER SHARE |
Camounts in USD 1 K0, with the exception of earings per share)
2008 2007
Average no, of shires 1612595 745 908 735016
Mo. of shares at period end 1012 595 745 1012 595 745
Fully diluted no, of shares 1012 505 7458 1012 595745
Enmings per share «0,50 0,01
Enmings per share fully diluted «0,50 0,01
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NOTE 5 TAXES

Basis for tax charges, change in deferred tax and tax payable 2008 2007
{amounts in USD | 0007

Result before tax charges -505 729 9817
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in respective countries (28% for parent company) 173 2749
MNon-taxable impairment 104 258

Tax on non deductable differences =10753 201
Change deferred tax asset, included in not recognised in the balance sheet -93 037 -426
Tnx churge 641 2 524
There is no time limit for the use of carry-forward loss. Mot recognised deductible expenses are lssue expenses

Calealation of deferred tax nsset 2008 2007
(amaoumis in USD 1 000)

MNan-current assels -4 455 -6922
Current assels -l =13 204
Mon-current linbilities Galé 1 588
Pension 47 159
Profit and loss account 66316 104 204
Net temporary dilferences 71113 B85 793
Carry lorward loss -257 201 -125 878
Basis for deferred tax asset -186 D38 =40 085
Deferred tnx nsset at nominal tax rates 52 105 11223
Including not recognised in the balance sheet =48 411 0
Deferved tax assel in the balanee sheet 3 694 11223

For the parent company the tax obligation is nominated and ealeulated in NOK, and then converted 1o USD.

Temporary dilferences in non-current assets include the part of tax conditioned excess value of 88 Petrolin that is expected to give tax conditioned accelerated depreciation in the

ongoing 2,8 year drilling contract, Other tax conditioned exeess values are not eonsidered.

The Norwegion tax authorities notified the company in 2006 of a tax audit for Petrolin Drilling ASA and it's subsidiaries Petrolin Drilling 11 AS, Petrolia Rigs AS and Petrolia Services

AS for the period from the formation of the companies in 1997 uniil the accounting year 2005, The companies have, as of today, not received notice of any changes affecting the tax

position of the companles

The Norwegian tax authorities have made inquiries to the subsidiary PetroMENA ASAS as 1o whether options

of the tax nssessments for previous years in the form of eapital gains taxation.

bl lan

gned from I’

of the
company. Further on, the iax authorities have made inquiries related to the subsidiaries’ conversion of debt to share eapital. The tax authoritics have stated that the tax assessments

for the period in question may by subject to corrections in connection with such events (i.0. capital gains taxation). [n o response to the inquiries the company have accounted for the
options contracts in the subsidaries and the ¢ jon of debt. The view of the company is that neither the options contracts nor the conversion of debt should give rise to correction

[NoTES INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Debi

(amonnts in USD [ 000y Goodwill financing Total
Accounting year 2007

Book value per 01.01.07 0 0 4]
Addition 0 5 160 5160
Acquisition of subsidiary 18 330 ] 14 330
Translation differences =400 0 =400
Book value per 31,12,07 17930 5160 23000
Per 31 December 2007

Acquisition cost 17930 5160 23 090
Accumulated depreciation and impalrment 0 0 0
Book viilue per 31,12,07 17930 5160 23090
Accounting year 2008

Book value per 01.01,08 17030 5160 23 090
Addition o 2756 2756
Acquisition of subsidinry 2482 0 2482
Expensed in 2008 4] -1916 <1916
Translation dilferences -1 068 0 -3 068
Boak value per 31.12,08 17 344 0 17344
Per 31 December 2008

Acquisition cost 17 344 0 14 862
A depreciation and impairment ] ] ]
Book value per 31.12.08 17 344 ] 14 862

Gioodwill relates to the acquisition of Independent Oil Tools AS. Hereof mUSD 3 9 relates 1o deferred tnx on excess values

The debt financing is expenses nccrued in connection with debt financing of construction projects. In the final accounts for 2008 we have expensed this as finacial cost related to the

uncerinin future of financing of the construction prajects.

Tmpairment test for goodwlll

Goodwill is alloeated 1o the Group's cash-generating units identified for each business segment. Gaodwill is in its entirety allocated to the segment oilfield

services,

Tinpairment test for eash-genernting units is based on estimated present value of future eash fows. The analysis is based on the 2009 budget.
Assessment is based on EBITDA in the group Independent Ol Tools AS. The impairment test did not call for impairment of goodwill in 2008
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INOTE 7 PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION l
{amounts in LIS | 000) 88 "Petrolin™ Periodicall  Drilling rqulp-| Rigs under| Lani and Other]
inclequif nini el meni construction) buildings i Total|

Per 1 January 2007

Acquisition cost 70 826 4101 2 898 86825
Accumulated depreciation =55 229| =il 20 0f =55 6ul 9|
Book value 01,01,07 24 597 3681 2 898 0 L o 31 174
Accounting year 2007

Boaok value 01,01,2007 24 597 3681 2 894 0 0 0 31 ITGJ
Acquisition of subsidiary 48 501 733 344 781 843
Addition ineluded leased equipment 6247 4 289 78293 589 3149 A8 924615
Disposal at book value -1 181 =1 181
Translation differences -3 136 =556 -121 =6 -4 909
Depreciation of the year -5 361 -1 148 -22 274 =27 284811
Book value 31,12.07 21 347 6 268 105 023 733 933 3114 A8 870 735
Per 31 December 2007

Acquisition cost 82937 7833 127301 733 933 EREE] a4 955 19§
Ac lated depreciation -60 590 -1 565 -22278) =27 0 -84 460)
Book value 31.12,07 22 347 6 268| 105 023} 733 933 3116 48] 870 735
Accounting year 2008

Book value 010108 22 347 6 208 105 023 733 933 illg A8 870 733}
Translation differences =21 0635 -338 =21 403
Addition included leased 2 344 28] 70 892 73 264
Instalments yard/project expenses 246 450 246 450
Met construction loan interest 62 794 62 794
Impairment of construction contracts -502 059 -502 059
Disposal at book value -6 227 -6 227
Deprecintion of the yenr 914 -1 811 =29 152 13 -1 =31 960
Book value 311208 23 777 4485 119 471 S41118 2 705 Bl 691 594
Per 31 December 2008

Acquisition cost 85282 7861 170 901 541118 2805 42| 808014
Accunmulated tlugtecimion 61 505 =3 370 -5143 0] < 100| =1 =116 4204
Book value 31,12,08 23 777 4 485 119 471 541118 2 7084 38 691 594
Remaining usefil life 14 year

Depreciation period 15 year § year 5 year 33 year 5 year

Residual value 10 800 0 o

Construction year 1076/1995/2006

Effective from | January 2008 the depreciation period for 88 Petrolin has been changed from 5 years to 15 years in the group's sccounts based on new estimates of remuining useful
life. Residual value has also been recaleulated causing a further reduction in depreciation. The net effect in the profit and loss statement for the fiscal year 2008 is mUSD 4.0,

Summary contstruction programme deepwater rigs usp UsD Usp usn
Contract price yard 449 081 482 500 523036 1 455517
Additional and ehnnge orders 46 816 15 582 1 64 670
Paid instalments yard 50% 0% 50 %
Expecied completion according to contract April 09 Sep 09 Jan 10

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is considered
1o be fair value less net of estimated cost 1o sell due to the financial situation in the group. Fair value is esiablished based on recent market values based on conditional offer
(MOU) received in 2000

Construction contenets, Deepwaler rig

The three subsidinrics PetroRig 1 Pre Ltd, PewoRig 11 Pte Ltd and PetroRig 111 Pte Lid have each entered into agreement with Jurong Shipyard Pre Lid in
Singapore for the construction of 3 semi submersible deepwater rigs (EPC-contracts), These are 6th generation units for drilling in ulira-deep waters
Expected delivery of the rigs is April 2009, September 2009 and January 2010 respectively

In construction contruct with the yard fixed price for the rigs corresponding to mUSD 449 for rig |, mUSD 483 for rig 11 og mUSD 524 for rig 111 has been agreed
For Petrolig | a suceess fee of mUSD 5 ia included. For PetroRig 11 a suceess fee of mUSD 2,5 is included. PetroRig 111 has postponed the 4th instalment to

yard, agreed interest rate in the period is fixed with 8 % The instalment will be settled in SGD, mSGD 161 Caleulated interest is included in the the table below with
TUSD 8,383,

Additional and variation orders and expenses related 1o project supervision and financing in the construction period will also acerue.

Remuining instulments to yard after the balnnce sheet date ¢

02 2000 03 2000 012010 SUM USD
Rig 1 ush 224 541 224 541
Rig Il usp 242 500 242 500
Rig 111 - including interest on deferred payment of 4th instal 1o yard usp 270351 270 351
Total usn 224 541 242 500 270 351 737 392

Contract PetroRig I og PetroRig 11

Petrobras America Ine and Petroleo Brasileiro $. A (Petrobras) in August 2000 and January 2007 signed a five year drilling contract for drilling operations in

Brazilian waters with Larsen Oil and Gas Lid in Aberdeen, Scotland. Acccording to contract with Larsen Ol & Gas Lid,, PeiroRig 1 Pte Lid and PetroRig 11 Prd Lid,

have a right and duty 1o operate this contract The contract has planned start-up from delivery of the rigs in 2009. In the event of a possible sale of PetroRig 1 and PetroRig 11,
the contracts will follow the rigs.
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Contract PetroRig 111
Together with the drilling company Larsen Oil & Gas Ld PetroMena ASA has entered into a 5 year drilling contract with Pemex at o value of MUSD 942
sccording to whichPetroRig 11T shall operate in the Mexican Gulf Start-up will take place in 2010 after delivery from yard.

Lensed equipment

Diilling equipment acquired through financial leases amounts to:
{amoita i LISD | 000)

Per 1 January 2007 0
Acquisition cost = financial leases 27 549
A lated depreciati =12 081
Ttook value per 31.12.2007 14 569
Accounting year 2007

Book value 01012007 0
Acquisition of subsidiary 13228
Addition £433
Depreciation of the year - 492
Book value per 31.12.2007 14 569
Accounting year 2008

Book value 01.01 2008 14 569
Addition 25204
Depreciation of the yeur -7 576
Translation differences -1 833
Hook value 31.12.2008 30 453
Aequisition eost — financial leases 51010
Accumulated depreciation -20 557
Book value 31,12.2008 30 453

The equipment is pledged as security for the leasing obligation

[NOTE 8 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Petrolia Drilling ASA has increased its shareholding in PetroMENA ASA from 50.6% 1o 51.5 % during 2008 by purchasing ordinary shares and through a private placement.
During 2008, the subsidiary Independent Oil Tools AS (100% owned) bought 51% of the shares in the oilfield services company Caspian Oilfield Services Company in Azerbaijan

Acquisition of Independeni Ol Tools AS (10T AS)

The group acquired 100% of the shares in Independent Oil Taols AS (10T AS) 15 January 2007, Independent Ol Tools AS consists of several companies with
activity in, among other countries, Morway, Holland, Australia and New Zealand. The companies’ main activity is hiring out drilling equipment and test strings for
oil activity and drilling contractors. Independent Ol Tools AS {group) Is consolidated in the group necounts as from 15 January 2007, Income consolidated for
the period 15.01.07-31.12.07 amounted to mUSD 47.4,

(nmounts in USD | 000} IOT AS Group
Acquisition cost

= Cosh 701227
= paid off debt =51 112
Total aciuisition cost 19114
Equity of the Group at the time of acquisition -3030
Excess value af the time of nequisition 15 186
Goodwill 5906

Excess value is allocated to drilling equipment in its entirety and depreciated over 5 years,
Goodwill relates to deferred tax on excess values of assets in the group 10T AS. 10T AS (group) ai the time of acquisition had goodwill
fran a previous ncquisition of MUSD 124,

Acquisition of PelroMENA ASA

The group increased its sharcholding in PetroMenn ASA 15, November 2007 from 43 8% to 50.62%. The company is consolidated in the group secounts a3
from 15 November 2007, Income consolidated for the period 16.11.07-31.12.07 amounts to mUSD 3.7,

Excess values related 1o the acquisitions are included at 100% from the time of consolidation of the subsidiaries. Goodwill is caleulated for each acquisition.

The result rom PetroMena ASA (group) is eonsidered ns associate for the period 1.1.07 1o 14,11.07 and recognised aecording to the equity method

nmounts in S0 | B0} Petro-Menn ASA Group
Fair value of the shares at the time of acquisition *) 207 169
Equity of the Group at the time of ncquisition (50.57%) -195 670
Excess value at the time of aequisition (majority share) 11 499
Excess value 100% 22738

*) Cost price for the shares after the aquisition was mUSD 220.2

The excess value is allocated 1o rigs under construction in its entirety
Deferred tax/goodwill is not recognised due to uncertainty related to future tax rate and tax regime
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The assets and labilities as of transaction date arising from the nequisition are as follows Final Final

10T AS 15.01,07 PetroMENA ASA 15.11,07
(mmonta in USE | 0003 Book value Fair value Book valie Falr value
Asgets
Intangible fixed asset 0 0 2182 2182
Goodwill 12424 18 330 0 0
Construetion Rig contract 1] 0 612132 634 870
Drilling equipment 58 682 73 863 4302 4302
Available-for-sale financial assets 0 0 21942 21 942
Total non-current assets 71 106 91 198 640 557 663 295
Other current assets 12 689 12 689 211 211
Other lquid asseis 0 0 5600 5 600
Bank deposits 4200 4209 428 365 424 363
Total current assets 16 898 16 898 434176 434178
Total nssels 88 004 109 096 1 074 733 1097 471

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(amounta in USE 1000y

Majority interest 3930 19 116 195 670 218 408
Mionarity interest 191 949 191 949
Tatal equity 3930 19116 387 619 410357
Linbilities
Deferred tax 4572 10478 0 0
Bond loan 0 o 630 997 650997
Retirement benefit obligations 512 512 0 0
Leasing and long term linbilities 16 458 16 458 0 0
Totnl non-current liabilities 11 542 27 447 650 997 650 997
Short term portion of long term liabilities 0 0 1810 1 810
Trade payables 1371 1371 26790 26790
Public duties 104 104 0 0
Taxes 2085 21955 0 0
Other current linbiliti 58 102 58102 7517 7517
Total current linbilities 62 533 61533 36117 36117
Total linbilities 84074 RO 980 687 114 687 114
Total equity & labilities 88 004 109 096 1074733 1007471
Pro forma nccounting figures
A pro forma income his been prapared pr ing the result of the Group based on the assumption of today's group structure including the acquisition of 10T AS (group) and
PetroMena ASA (group) and increased sharcholding in Petrojack ASA (group) being established 1 Janunry 2007,
The pro forma income statement represents a hypothetical situation and not the Group's actual result.
The pro forma figures have been prepared by including the income statements of IOT AS {group) and PetroMena ASA (group) for 12 months in 2007 and 2008,

Actual Proformn
{amounis in USD 1 Q) 2008 2007
Pro forma income statement
Revenue 155 484 133 237
Resilt of the year -506 370 -25 940

N 9 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Venture Drilling AS is n joint venture cooperation between Sinvest ASA and Petrolia Drilling ASA with business addresse in Kristiansand, Norway
Petrolia Drilling ASA's shareholding in the company is 50%

damaiiits § LISID | 00§

Book value 01.01.07 48 612
Share of result of the year 13819
HBook valiie 31,12,07 621 431
Book value 01.01.08 62431
Share of result of the year 28 451
Ciabr on sale of equipment within the group -1 631
Dividends 2008 =12424
Book value 31.12,08 76 827

In 2006 Venture Drilling AS entered lnto an agreement on lease of DS “Deep Venture”, formierly DS "Valentin Shashin®, for en perlod of five years with option
on another 6 twosyear periods. Venture Drilling AS has entered into a management agreement with Larsen Ol & Gas Lid on technical and operational
management of DS “Deep Venture”. On behalf of Venture Drilling AS Larsen Ol & Gas Lid has entered into o contract for the drilling vessel with ExxonMobil for
1 18 month assignment in West-Afica. Deep Venture commenced this contraet June 30 2007, The contract was recently extended, and DS Deep Venture will

be engaged for Maersk Oil Angola until July 25 2009, at a day rate of USD 425,000 after witholding tax. Venture Drilling has agreed to a further 18 months
contract with Maersk Oil Angola at o day rate of USD 495,000 after witholding tax. The rates are base rates, i.c minimum rates, depending on where the drillship
will operate vunder the contract.

Petrolin Drilling ASA and Sinvest ASA guaraniee the performance of the all obligations of Venture Drilling under the contract with Maersk Oll Angola
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Key figures for Venture Drilling AS 2008 2007
{mounis in LS | 000)

Balance sheet

Mon-current assels 123 768 121311
Current assels 50112 65 743
Equity 67 802 92739
Mon-current liabilities 21 067 47723
Current liabilities 93 921 46 592

Income statement

Operating income 152 665 82681
Operating expenses 65 528 35061
Net financial items -1032 -7 893
Result of the yenr 56 681 24 B4R

The annual accounts has per date not been adopted by the Board of Venture Drilling.

[NOTE 10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES |

Company Business address Sharehalding Shareholding
in 2008 in 2007

Petrojack ASA Oslo, Norway 3995 % 31995 %

Larsen Rig Lid Cayman Island 30.00 %

Petroresources Lid Limassol, Cyprus 2857 %

Petrojack ASA

The group's book value of the shares in Petrojack ASA is NOK 2.93/USD 0.42 per share, equivalent to the quoted price on Oslo Stock Exchange 31.12.2008.
Total fair value bised on the quoted price is mUSD 10.8 wich is the book value of the investment aller imparement of the shares

Larsen Rig Lid
Peirolia Drilling has invested mUSD 42 in Larsen Rig Lid and eontrols 30 % of the company. The company is incorporated in Cayman Island in 2008

Petroresources Lid
Petrolia Drilling has invested mUSD 6 in P es Lid and Is 28.57 % of the company

Caleulation of values in the balance sheet

Petro- Pelro-

(wmounts in USD | 000) Menn ASA Petrojock ASA  Larsen Rig Lid resources Lid Totnl
Bool yalue per 1,1,2007 163 848 0 0 1] 163 B48
Transfers from available-for-sale financial asset 4952 4952
Addition of the year 27023 34 27987

Contribution in kind in Petrolia with shares in Petrojuck 101 645 101 645
Disposal -1317 -1317
Share of resuli of the year -8 623 -4 888 =13 511
Disposnl/transfer 10 group company =183 149 =183 149
Book value per 31.12,2007 o 100 425 0 0 100 4258
Transfers from subsidiary 1 1
Addition of the year 0 ] 42 000 5999 47999
Share of result of the year 0 24 759 =452 =110 -25 320
Impairment of shares 0 =50271 «20 548 -3 000 -B2 819
Depreetation/impairment of value ndded 0 =5 530 i) 0 =5 330
Book value per 31.12.2008 0 10 866 21 000 2 8490 34 756

Value added from ncquisition of the shares in Petrojack ASA was entirely allocated to rigs under construction
The sale of Petrojack 11 is trented as o financial lease in the Petrojack accounts in 2008, In PDR, the value added on Peirojack 11 has been included in the net
profit from the sale in share of result of the year. The value ndded on Petrojnck [V has been impaired to 0.

Gross values (100%) of profit and loss, nssets and linbilities are:

Company Assets Linbilities Revenue Resilt of the year
(umiounis in LS 1 000)

2007

PetroMenn ASA (group) 1 367076 085 394 3100 =24 957
2007

Petrojack ASA (group) 620972 440 251 ne =15 036
2008

Petrojack ASA (group) 439 786 381821 34 260 =124 756
2008

Larsen Rig Lid 136 166 2671 ] -6 505
2008

Petroresources Lid 21 440 821 0 145
NOTE 11 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS |
Company No. of shares Cost price Market- Book value Book value
(amount in USD | 000) value 2008 2007
Island Ofl & Gas Ple 5128 205 4432 871 871 3483
Total a71 3 483

The company is quoted on the London Stock Exchange.
The fair value of the shares is based on their current bid prices in an active market
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NOTE 12 TRADE- AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES |

Other current recelvabiles 2008 2007
{amounts in USD | D00}
Trade receivables 35084 24094
Prepaid expenses and value added tx owing 9550 1410
Mabilization expensics prepaid in 2007/2008 11 150 15294
Recaivable from joint venture 1424 6 000
Receivable Larsen Oil & Gas Led 1) 15274 0
Other current receivables 1312 7170
Toial 73798 53 068
1) Related to trade recievables to Pemex, LOG Lid is ger and responsible for collecting payments from Pemesx
Recognised value of the Group's (rade recelvables and other receivables per foreign currency: 2008 2007
(amaounis in USD | 0003
usp 58236 iz a4l
GBEP 0 5657
EUR 12627 7 069
AUD 2474 1714
NOK 457 5 388
Total 73 795 53 968
Aging of acconunis receivables < 3 manths 4 - 6 montha = 6 monihs Total
Accounts reccivables 35 084 35084
Other current receivables 15274 2136 15010
Total 50380 2736 P 53094

Prepaid expendes and mobilization expenses have been exempted in the above profile.

[NOTE 13 INVESTMENT IN MONEY MARKET FUND |

Cammotiiits i USD 1 000) 008 2007
Holberg Likviditet — money market fund 83 101
Tatal 83 101

Tnvestments in cash unit trust are assessed at falr value at the balance sheet date

[NOTE 14 BANK DEPOSITS |

{aoiiita | USD | 000) 2008 2007
Bank deposits 127 812 612275
Hereof deposit on suspense nccount for use as instalments on construction contract for rig 1, 1 and 11
Bank deposit in NOK translated 1o USD 5116 202 DRO
Bank deposit in USD 1574 2298
Restricted capital from the financing og $8 Petralia for payment of accrued interest and belonging projects 0 41519
Security in Lioyds bank for Pemex contract regarding PetroRig 111 22410 21873
Security In Handelsbanken for Pemex contract regarding 88 Peirolia 26 909 26 900
Restricted capital from net earning account for Pemex contraci regarding 55 Peirolia 5 000 0
Security in DB for the bond loan in PDR ASA 6646 0
Employees’ tix deduclion 114 231
_Total restricted capitnl 97 769 384 910
Cash and bank deposits per currency (amounts in USD 1 000)
Cnsh an bank deposits in NOK 54010 EIERI L]
Cash an bank deposits in USD 68 481 208426
Cash an bank deposits in SGD 130 72
Cash an bank deposits in GBI 453 658
Cash an bank deposits in EUR 1354 0
Cash an bank deposits in AUD 1384 o
Total 127812 612274
[MOTE 18 SHARE CAPITAL |

Share r;|||ﬁh|| of Petralia Drl!!lng ASA pur 31.12.2008:

Number  Nominal valie Book value Book value
2008 2007
Shares 1 012 596 745 NOK 0.50 LS 93 568 USDH 93 568

Per 31 December 2008 Petrolia Drilling ASA holds § 250 024 treasury shares, corresponding to 0.52 % of the shares outstanding in Petrolin Drilling ASA
Per 31 December 2007 Petrolia Drilling ASA holds 3 450 024 treasury shares, corresponding to 0.34 % of the shares outstanding in Petrolia Drilling ASA.
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List of the major shareholders:
Petrolin Drilling ASA had a total of 6 129 shareholders per 31.12.08. The table below shows the company's 20 largest sharcholders per 31 December 2008
according to the VPS (shares with nomiinal value NOK 0.50).

Sharcholders No. of shares Shareholding
1 Petrojack ASA 253 000 000 24,99 %
3 Independent Oil & Resources ASA 227952 747 2251 %
3 JPMorgan Chase Bank S/A F+C Invest Trusi 29 540 000 2,92%
4 DN Invest AS 23 469 385 2,32%
5 NET AS 15 984 000 1,58 %
6 State Street Bank and Trust Co. 10 188 761 1,01 %
b] Jacob Haugen 10 000 000 0,00 %
# Odin Offshore 8 500 000 0,84 %
9 Danske Bank A/S 7114230 0,70 %
1] Goldman Suchs Int Equity 6512 M6 0,64 %
] JPMorgan Chase Bank & 180 000 0,61 %
12 Thor ldar Pedersen § 542 00D 0,55 %
13 Askeladden Invest 5300 300 0,52%
14 Societe Generale Paris §211123 0,51 %
15 Mestiun Invest AS 4 000 000 0,49 %
16 SER Private Bunk S A Luxembourg 4 625 000 0,46 %
17 Molnsset AS 4 496 799 0,44 %
1% Citibank N.A New York Branch 4412979 0,44 %
19 Inerensed Ol Recovery AS 4 350 000 0,43 %
20 Troika Invest AS 3930 000 0,39%

Others 366 037 142 36,15 %
Total no. of shares before treasury shares 1007 346 721 99,48 %
Trensury shares § 250 024 0,52 %
Total no, of shares 1012 596 745 100,00 %

Shares owned by members of the board and other primary insiders
The table below shows shareholding of members of the baard and managing direcior and other related parties (shares with nominal value NOK 0.50)

MName 31122008
Members of the board and managing direcior:

Klaus P. Tollefsen, Chairman of the Board 0
Unni F. Tefre, Board member 0
Gun Marit Stenersen, Bonrd member 0
Terje O, Hellebo, Board member 3424
Leil Holat, Board member 1) 1924 762
Lars Moldestad, Managing Director 2) 4 496 799
Bernt Skeie, CFO of Petrolin Drilling ASA and PotroMENA ASA 400 000

Other primary insiders:

Petrojnck ASA, Lars Moldestnd is Managing Director, Borge G. Larsen and Terje O Helleho are Board members 253 000 000
Independent Ol & Resources ASA, Bernt Skele is Managing Director 4) 227952 T47
DNO Invest AS, Berge G, Larsen is Chairman of the Board 23 469 385
NET AS5) 15 D84 000
Inerensed Oll Recovery AS, Herge G Larsen 3) is Board member, Lars Moldestad is Chairman of the Board 4 350 000
Time Critical Petrolenm Resources AS, Berge G- Larsen is owner of the company 2018

1) 974 762 shares are owned by Neuman Invest AS where Leif Holst is General Manager. 950 000 shares are owned by Novaci AS where Leif Holst is the
company's Chairman of the Board.

2) 4 494 799 shares are owned through 100 % owned company, Molasset AS.

3) Berge G, Larsen indirectly owns 4 352 108 shares through Incresed Oil Recovery AS and Time Critical Petroleum Resources AS, Increased Oil Recovery
AS is controlled by Berge G, Larsen. Berge G. Larsen Is Bonrd member of the company. Time Critical Petroleum Resources AS 18 100 % owned by

Berge G Larsen. Berge G, Larsen is the company’s Chairman of the Board. Tnereased Ol Recovery AS owns 100 % in Larsen Oil & Gos AS

4) Inerensed Oil Recovery AS owns 29.47 % of Independent Oil & Resources ASA

5) MET AS owns 26, 7% in Increased Ol Recovery AS,

[NOTE 16_BOND LOANS |

Per December 31 the group had the following bond loans:

Bond Loans Average Intorest Effective interest 2008 2007
(armounts in LIS ) G00) rale rate
Bond loan (mNOK 500) ISIN: MO 0010440258 - 12% Perrolin Drilling ASA 12.00% 1327% 69 B55 0
Bond loan (mNOK 2 000) ISIN: MO 0010316086 - 9.75% PeiroMENA ASA 9.75% 1061% 0 362473
Bond loan (mNOK | 600) ISIN; NO 001035264 4 <FRN PetroRig 111 Pie Lid 12.00% 13.65% 224 044 288 832
Bond losn (mUSD 300) 151N NO 001039578 3 - 10.85% PetroMENA ASA 10.85% 12,53% 124 501 256 722
Book value 31.12.2008 418 400 908 027
Long term Short term 2008 2007
Split between long term and short term partion of hond loan 31.12.2008: portion portion  Total bond loan Tatal bond loan
Bond loan (mNOK 500) 69 855 0 60 855 95 416
Bond loan (mNOK 2 000) 0 281 388 281 388 362473
Bond loan (mNOK | 600) 224 044 0 224 044 288 832
Bond loan (mUSD 300) 124 501 134 400 258 901 292 7122
ook value 31.12, 418 400 415 788 #34 188 1 039 463

Bond loan mNOK 500, was ralsed to refinance the bond of mNOK 250 and for general corporate purposes which may include investments in other
companies/assets within the oil/offshore sector.

Bond loan mNOK 2 000, was raised for financing of instalmenis for cc ion contract tig Land 11,

Bond loan mNOK | 600, was raised for financing of instalments far ion contract rig 111 Unused balance is deposited on suspense account for
financing of future instalments for eonstruction eontract rig 11

Bond loan mUSD 300, was raised for among other things the financing of the acquisition of av S8 Petrolia in November 2007
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Bond loan mNOK 500, book value reflects expenses directly pitributable to the raising of the loan by mNOK 12,5 whereof mNOK |4 is recognised
a5 interest expense in 2008,

Bond loan mNOK 2 000, book value rellects expenses directly attributable 1o the raising of the loan by mNOK 50 whereof MNOK 8.1 is recognised
05 interest expense in 2008

Bond loan mNOK 1 600, book value reflects expenses direetly attributable to the raising of the loan by mNOK 40 whereof mNOK 5.2 is recopnised
as interest expense in 2008

Bond loan mUSD 300, book value rellects expenses directly attributable to the raising of the loan by mUSD 7.5 whereof mUSD 2.6 is recopnised
s interest expense in 2008

Book value of mortgage

Bond loan mNOK 500 is subject 1o security in bank deposit,

Bond loans mNOK 2 000 og mNOK 1 600 is subject to security in bank deposit, and in the construetion eontracts I, 1T and 11 in Singapore

Bond lonn mUSD 300 in addition to seeurity In bank deposit has first mortgage in the g 8§ Petrolin, security in revenue from drilling contract to 58 Petralin,

security in shares of subsidinry PetroMenn Ltd, Cyprus, and security in construetion contracts 1, 1T o I in Singapore. PetroMenn Lid has g d this loan
Bond loan mNOK 500 2008 2007
Suspense bank account & 6ilb 0
Total book value of mortgnge 6 66 0
Bond loan mNOK 2 000
Rigs under construction, rig | and 11 284 745 505 049
s bink aecount 0 104 463
Total book value of morigage 284 745 609 512
Bond loan mNOK 1 600
Rigs under construetion, rig L1 256373 206 146
_S\_ucpemg bank aecount 36 690 189915
Total book value of morigage 293 063 306 061
Band lonn mUSD 300
85 Petrolin incl. drilling equipment 217431 228 923
Suspense bank account 5 000 a1519
Total book value of mortgage 222431 270 444
Original maturity structure bond lonns:

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
NOK 200 000 370 000 2090 000 130 D00 1310000 4 100 000
usp 26400 237 600 264 000

Maturity structure bond loan it PetroRig Tan PetroRig I1 is sold in 2009:

There is no new ngreement related to maturity stracture of bond loan mNOK 2 000 related to possible sale of 88 Petrofig [ and §5 PetroRig 11 In

the table below the original maturity structure of bond loan mMOK 2 000 is reduced by 50 % for cach sale. The same percantage as used te determine repayment i
possible sale. 17 58 PetroRig | is sold 50 % of the remaining borrowing amount in bond loan mNOK 2 000, mNOK 1 000, falls due. IF 58 Petroltiy 11 ix sold

50 % of the remaining borrowing amount in bond loan mNOK 2 000, mNOK | 000, fulls due. In bond loan mUSD 300, mUSD 60 fulls due for each rig. See
criteria related 1o sale below. In the original maturity structure for bond loan mUSD 300, mUSD 26,4 falls due in November 2009 This is 10 % of the remaining
loan. Due to possible sale of $§ PetroRig 1 and SS PeiroRig 11 the remaining loan per November 2009 is reduced with mUSD 120 and therefore the original
instalment in 2000 is reduced to mUSD 14.4. (10 % of estimated remaining loan per November 2009)

2009 010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
NOK 2000000 0 170 000 450 000 130 000 1 310000 4 100 000
UsD 134 400 129 600 264 000

1 S5 PetroRig 1 and 88 PetroRig 11 is sold in the period between 24 March 2009 and 23 mai 2010 the redemtion price in bond loan mNOK 2 000 is 7 % and 5 % in
bond loan mUSD 300, See criteria related 10 sale below, This price is included in caleulations related to impairment of rigs (fair value less cost 1o sell), see note 7.

Borrowing terms
Bond lonn mNOK 500 in Peteolia Drilling ASA
Petrolin Diilling has an option 1o redeem the loan inclusive of interest in 1otal or parily at the following terms

Period Price
Redemption in the period 21 June 2008 1l 19 June 2000 106,00%
Redempiion in the period 20 June 2009 1ill 19 June 2010 104.50%
Redemption in the period 20 June 2010 ill 19 Junc 2011 103.50%
Redemption in the period 20 June 2011 till the expiry of the term of the loan 103.25%

According to the borrowing agreement Petrolia Drilling can not incur morigage debt, encumbrances, guarantees, right ol retention
or any other type of mortgage for present or future assets or give any g or comj ion, axemptions may, however, be
made provided it is in compliance with normal market practice.

Covennnts

Petrolia Drilling can not, aceording 1o the borrowing agreement, pay dividends, purchase own shares or make payment to the sharcholders beyond 30%
of the group’s profit after taxes the preceding year, without approval from the lenders. Nor can the company without approval dispose of or close
down a significant pari of the enterprise or change the character of its operations.

In nddition Petrolin Drilling is responsible that the company (parent)
Balance Sheet Reporting Date, which is every quarter.

Total nssets are the aggregate of (i) the market value of the shares in listed companies, (ii) the book value of shares in non-lisied companies,
goodwill deducted and (iii) free ensh. Gross debl is the aggregate book value of the financial indebledness according to IFRS in the accounts

There is no breach in the borrowing terms per 31.12.2008

a coverage raiio (ratio of total assets to total debr) of 2.0 or higher on each

Bond loan mNOK 2 000 in PetroMenn ASA,
PetroMens ASA has an option to redeem the loan inclusive of interest in total or partly at the following terms
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Perlod Price
Redemption in the period 24 May 2006 till 23 Mareh 2000 109.00%
Redemption in the period 24 March 2009 till 23 May 2010 107.00%
Redemption in the period 24 May 2010 6l 23 May 2011 105.50%
Redemption in the period 24 May 2011 6ill the expiry of the term of the loan 104,00%

Bond lonn mNOK 1 600 i PetroMeni ASA.
PetroMena ASA has an option to redeem the loan inclusive of interest in total or partly ot the Following terms:

Perlod Price
Redemption in the period 20 February 2007 till 20 February 2010 108 %
Redemption in the period 20 February 2010 1ill 20 February 201 1 106 %
Redemption in the period 20 February 2011 till 20 February 2012 105 %
Redempiion in the period 20 February 2012 till 20 February 2013 104 %
Redemption in the period 20 February 2013 till the expiry of the term of the loan 103 %

Bond loan mUSD 300 In PetroMenn ASA.
PetroMena ASA has an option to redeem the loan inclusive of interest in total or partly at the following terms:

Period Price
Redemption in the period 19 No 2008 till 191 ber 2009 105 %
Redemption in the period 19 November 2009 till the expiry of the term of the loan 103 %

Bond borrowing is recognised at amortised cost and not fair value adjusted. Change in time value on options for future redemption is consequently not recognised.

Covenants bond loan In PetroMenn ASA (group)

Bond loan (mNOK 2 000)

In the event of a sale of one of the riga/construction contracts or more than 50 % of the shares in one of the subsidiaries (PetroRig 1 and I1), the company
shall repay 50 % of the remaining borrowing amount at the same borrowing terms as mentioned nhove. In the event of o sale of both rigsilding contracts
or more than 50 % of the shares in both subsidiaries (PetroRig 1 and 11), the company shall repay the total of the remaining borrowing amount ot the same
harrawing terms as mentioned above

Dividends ean not be paid and own shares can not be purchased before the rigs are delivered. Afler delivery of the rigs dividends can not be paid and own
shares can not be purchased unless equity ratio exceeds 040 In the event that equity ratio exceeds 0.40 dividends can still not be paid and own shares still
not be purchased beyond 30% of the Group's result after taxes, based on the financial statements of the preceding year.

Bond loan (mNOIK 1 600)
In the event of a sale of rig/construction contract the company shall repny the total of the remaining borrowing amount at the same terms ns mentioned above
The possibilities of the borrower to pay dividends ore restricted. Borrower is subsidiary PetroRig 111 Pre Ltd,

Bond lonn (mUSD 300)
In the event of a sale of §§ Petrolia, mUSD 225 of the bond loan of the remaining mUSI? 264 falls due for payment. In the event of a sile of rigs under construetion/

construction contracts/shares in es in Singapore, mUSD 60 of the loan per sold rig/costruction contract/subsidiary falls due for payment

There is no breach in the borrowing terms for any of the three loans per 31122008 The company has received notice of default for bond loans after the
balance sheet date ef note 25. The company rejects that any defhult exists

Il'n‘ OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES |

(amuuits in USD | 000) 2008 2007
Liability connected to financial leasing of drilling equipment 22452 8901
Other non-current linbiliti 4830 1183
Taial ather non-current lablitles 27 281 10 084

Finaneial leasing lability drilling equipment

The payment schedule is: 2008 2007
{amoints i LIS1 1 0060y

Fulling due within 1 year 7940 31259
Falling due between | and 5 years 22452 8 901
Tatal 30 392 12 160

Interest rate is 3 month LIBOR + p.t 1.85 % margin. Cf. note 7, Book value of assets financed through financial leasing amounts to
mUSD 30,5 Petrolia Drilling ASA har given surety towards the leasing company at a value of mUSD 65.5,

[NOTE 18 SHORT TERM PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Camaunts in S | 000) 2008 2007
Bond loan MMNOK 500 (refinanced in 2008) 0 95 436
Accrued interest on bond loan MNOK 500 238 4700
Acerued interest on bond loan mNOK 2 000, respectively mNOK 19,5 in both 2008 and 2007 2786 3604
Accrued interest on bond lonn mNOK | 600, respectively mMOK 58.3 in 2008 and 64,3 in 2007 8326 ]
Acerued interest on bond loan MUSD 300 31183 3888
Next year installment on debt, bond loan MUSD 300 14 400 36 000
Short term portion of leasing Nability 7940 4442
Next year install on bond loan MUSD 300 and MNOK 2,000 in the event of sale of PetroRig 1 and PetroRig 11 401389 0
Short term partion of long term linbilities 438 262 163 969

|NOTE 19 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION - GUARANTEE

Petrolin Drilling ASA has issued a security for leasing equipment in Independent Tool Pool AS (100% owned by Petrolia Services AS) of mUSD 63,5,
In 2007 the securily was mUSD 14.4

The construction contract which PetroRig | Pte Ltd and PetraRig 11 Pid Lid have entered into with the Jurong-yard is secured by a payment guarantee from
the parent company, PetroMENA ASA (owned 51.5% of PDR ASA). The guarantee shall secure that the instalments to yord, change orders and possible

interest are being paid al maturity

Peirolin Drilling ASA and Sinvest ASA guarantee the performance of the all obligations of Venture Drilling under the contract with Maersk Oil Angola
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NOTE 20 TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES J
Trade payables 2008 2007
{amounis in LISD | 000}
Trade payabl 22 964 15 405
Total trade payables 22 964 15 405
Other eurvent liabilities
Public duties i 353
Accrued expenses 7684 12721
Liabilities to related parties (note 22) 35026 50529
Other current liabilities 16 995 21 886
Total other eurrent labilities 60 936 85 491
Total irade payables and other current linbilities #3 899 100 896
Other current liabilities include borrowings regarding acquisition of shores of MUSD 8.3
Recognised value of debt per foreign exchange: 2008 2007
UsD 64 350 75970
MOK 12 690 24029
5GD 889 171
aBp 521 726
EUR 3 805 0
AUD | 645 0
Total 43 900 100 896
[NOTE 21 PENSIONS |
The group his a pension scheme related to the subsidinry 10T AS. The scheme includes 20 active and | retired persons and entitles to defined future benefits
These are malnly based on contribution time, wage level at reached retirement age and the size of the payments from the National Insurance
Pension benefits 2008 2007
(nimonts 6 US0 1 000)
Carried linbility is ealeulnted ns follows: Secured Secured
Pesent value of funded obligations 922 1927
Fair value of plan assels =763 -1502
Unrecognised affacts of actuarial gains/ losses 257 ]
Payraoll tax 17 60
il bligntion per 31.12 433 485
Change in defined benefit obligation over the year
Pension obligation per 01,01 1827 0
Obligations taken over from acquisition 0 1719
Present value of contributions by plan participants 0 150
Current service cost 39 0
Interest expense 46 (8
Change in pensions plan -128 0
Actunrinl gains and losses -9 0
Foreign exchange effect <271 0
Benefits paid =19 =18
Pension obligation per 31,12 912 1927
Change In fair value of plan assets of the year
Pension obligations per 01.01 1502 o
Assets from aequisitions 0 1269
Expected return on plan assets 34 73
Employee contributions 17 178
Change in pension plans =580 o
Actuarial gains and losses =59 o
Foreign exchange effect =224 ]
Benefits paid =19 -18
Plan nssets per 31.12 763 1502
Total pension expense included in the income sintement
Gamunts in US1 1 000) Secured Secured
Current service cost 57 153
Interest cost A4 7
Expected return on plan nssets -32 68
Recognized actuarial gains/losses 2 0
Change in pension plans EH] o
Payroll tax 9 22
Total, included in £] 149 178
The following principal actuarial assumptions have been used:
Discount rate 3,80 % 4,50 %
Expected return non plan assets 5,80 % 5,50 %
Annual salary increase 4,00 % 4,50 %
Annual pension inerense 3,75 % 4,25%
Annual regulation of the National Insurance Basic Amount 375 % 425 %
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[NOTE 22 RELATED PARTIES

Shareholding of related parties is discussed in note 15, Some persons and companies will have sevaral positions in relation to the company and may, independent of the circumstances,
have different interests as regards the Petrolia Drilling group. The Tollowing is a list of significant related partics

u) Rerge Gerdi Larsen
Berge G. Larsen is Chairman of the Board of NG Invest AS and of Lursen Ol & Gns AS. He is olso Board member of PairoMana ASA, Petrolack ASA and Increased Oil Recovery
AS. Petrolia Drilling ASA owns 31.5% in PeiroMenn ASA and 39.95% in Petrolack ASA

B) Larsen Qi & Gas AS

The group has entered into n busi 1 with Larsen Oil & Gas AS (LOG)

The company is 100 % owned by Increased Ol Recovery AS (IOR AS). Berge Gerdt Larsen is Board Member in IOR AS and Chairman of the Board in LOG AS
Lars Moldestad is manoging Director of LOG AS

The agreement with LOG AS for Petrolfa Drifling has the following main principles:

LOG is to take care of all current administration and place at disposal managing director for the company. LOG shall also take care of accounting and budgeting, hereunder reporting (o
the company’s bonrd. LOG shall attend to the company’s external reporting and the demand for infarmation that is made to a company noted on the stock exchange. LOG shal attend
to the company’s share repister. LOG shall assist in the commereinl and technical operation of the company's vessels. The agreement with LOG remains in force until the parties

agree on termination, yet the agreement can be terminated subject 1o & months' written nolice by legal cause. Legal cause is for example cease of nctivity in the company, merger with
another company, establishment of own manngement, material change in activities ete. For these serviees LOG shall receive an annual compensation of mNOK 3

In 2008 an additional fee of mMMOK 2 has been paid. This is in aceordanee with the resolution at the ordinary general meeting at May 28 2008

The agreement with LOG AS for PetroMena ASA has the following main principles:

Larsen Ol & Gas Lid has subcontracted some of the administration services for PetroMena ASA to LOG AS. LOG AS earries out administration, nccounting and budgeting ineluding
reporting to management and board and external reporting and sttends to the demand for information. LOG AS shall atiend to the company's share register. The annual Business
Administration fee is mNOK 2.5,

) Larsen Ol & Gas Ltd in Aberdeen, Scotlund
The company is 100% controlled by Berge G. Larsen. The company s drilling contractor for 85 “Petrolin” and DS "Deep Venwire”. LOG s also technical and operational manager for
55 “Petrolin” and DS "Deep Venture”, LOG is also technical and operational manager for PetroRig 1, 11 and 111 in PetroMena ASA

Venture Drilling AS (50% owned by Petrolin Drilling ASA) has entered inta a manag i3t it for technical and operational management of the rig DS "Deep Venture”

The agreed fee s USD 3 000 per day when the rig is under drilling contract, USD 6 000 per day during reactivating and USD 3 000 per day if the rig s not in operation or is moved without
being under drilling contraci. Manager may earn a bonus of up to USD 1 000 000 in connection with the renctivating, provided certain demands are met. From October 2008, daily
management fee when the rig is under drilling contract increased 1o USD 10 000, Effective from November 2005, Petrolia Drilling ASA has entered into an agreement in connection

with the management agreement between Venture Drilling AS and Larsen Oil & Gas Lid which commits the company to render an annual fee of mNOK 3 to Larsen Oil & Gas Ltd

The ngreement is based on the fact that the agreement with Venture Drilling AS does not give Larsen Ol & Gas Lid sulliclent incoma to cover the company’s operating expenses

and secure o satisfictory profit from the agreement. In 2008 mUSD | 8 has been expensed

In connection with operations in countries in West Afiica for DS Deep Venture, LOG branches/companics have been set up to support local matters. The expenses involved are

included in the operation expenses.

PetroMenn ASA has entered into the following agreemenis with LOG Lid

1) Management contract in force from May 2005, comprises among other things management, project supervision and market activities in the construction
period for the rigs 1 and 11, For this work an annual fee of mUSD 0.8 per rig shall be paid

In the event that more than 50 % of the rig&/controlling companies are sold, 1.OG Lt shall receive 4 % of the sales amount

The Board considers the probability of a sale of the S5 PetroRig 1 and S5 PetroRig 11 1o be more than 50 %. Commision of 4 % of the sales amount is
ineluded in cost to sell. Fair value less cost to sell is the lowest and impnirment of rigs is ealeulated on basis of this, ef note 7,

The agreement may be terminated subject to 12 months' notice, but ean not be terminated when the rigs are executing a drilling contract, fulfilling an intention
agreement for n drilling contract or other obligations to operate the riy when this inkes place based on an offer from manager. In the case of termination
without the npproval of the manager and without reason before delivery, mUSD | shall be paid for each of the rigs [and 11 for discharge of management

2} Technical operation contract to cover marketing and technical operation in the construction period and amounts te USD 3,000 per day for rig I and
USD 4,500 per day for rig 11 and 111, In 2008 MUSD 44 is chiieal assist

gnised as exy for

LOG Lid shall be manager for the rigs after delivery at o fee of USD 6,000 per day for rig | and USD 9,000 per day for rig 11 og 111

3) The company is drilling company for 8§ Petrolin, the agreement is transferred through the nequisition of 88 Petrolia. Management fee is USD 10,240 per
day. The contract nlso includes an incentive fee of USD 4,800 per day for each month without zero day-work rate from the diilling contract. A condition for
the fee is that accumiilated “zero day-work rate” is less than 72 hours per 3 month period and a possibility of bonus connected o the minimization of down
time for the rig and general tion of the LOG has established a local branch, LOG Mexieo Branch, who is to attend to local maiters in the
operations. In 2008 mUSD 3.7 is ¢ ined ns exj for 2 of §5 Petrolia

d) Larsen (01 & Gas Pre Lid (LOG Pre), Singapore
The company is 100 % owned by Larsen Oil & Gas FZCO in Dubai LOG Lid in Aberdeen owns 45 % of Larsen Ol & Gas FZCO

Effective as of 04.05.07 PetroRig I Pre Lid and PetroRig 11 Pie Lid hos entered into an ag of Project Management and € ion Supervision

with Larsen Ol & Gos Pte Ltd in Singapore For this work an annual fee of mUSD 2,2 per rig shall be paid. This fee is deducted from the fee mUSD 3 to LOG Ltd PetroRig 11 Pre Ltd
s entered inta a corresponding ngreement with 1.OG Pre Ltd in January 2007 with an annual fee of mUSD 2.2, The agreements may be terminated subject to 12 months” notice,

but ean not be terminated when the rigs are executing a drilling contract, fulfilling an intention agreement for a drilling contract or other obligation to operate the rigs when this

takes place based on an offer from manager. In the ease of ermination without the approval of the manager and without reason before defivery, mUSD 2 per rig shall be paid for
discharge of project management services.

&) Larsen Ofl & Gay FECQ, Dubai (LOG FZC0)
LOG Lid 18 45 % owned by LOG FZCO.

PetroRig 111 Pre Ltd has in 2007 entered into a Management Agreement with LOG FZCQ involving an annual fee of MUSD 0.8 The fee shall cover project
supervision services and market nctivities connected 1o Rig 111

The agreement may be terminated subject 1o 12 months' notice, but ean not be terminated when the rigs are executing a drilling contract, fulfilling an intention
agreement for a drilling contract or other obligation w operate the rig when this tnkes place based on an offer from manager. In the ease of termination

without the approval of the manager and without reason before delivery, MUSD 1 shall be paid for rig 111 for discharge of management

I the rig or more than 50 % of the holding company is sold, LOG FZCO shall receive 4 % of the sales amount. The Board considers the probability of a sale
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of PetroRig [11 to be less than 50 %. Therefore no provision hias been made for possible liability.

) Petroliu Dritting (UK) Lid. § Aberdecn, Scotland
Petrolia Drilling (UK) Lid is 100 % owned by Larsen Oil & Gas Ltd. The company is a sub-supplier for Larsen Oil & Gas Ltd. in connection with operation of 55 “Petrolia”, The crew
onboard the rig s employed in this company

g Independent Oilfields Rentuls Lid,
Berge G. Larsen is indirectly minority shareholder. In 2005 the Group purchased drilling equipment from the company worth USD 1 955 000, The equipment was in its entirety used s
part of contribution in kind at the establishment of Venture Drilling AS. The amount is recognised in the balinee sheet s other current linbility per. 31.12.08

h) Independent O & Resources ASA (IO&R)
Berge G. Larsen is indirectly minority shareholder 10&R ASA has granted Independent Tool Pool AS a short term loan of mUSD 17,9 The loan is ealeulated at an interest of 6%

i) Petrajack ASA
The company is 39.25% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA

Petrolia Services AS lins bought drilling equipment from its associate Petrojack ASA in 2008, Costprice for the equipement was mUSD 115, based on the price established in an
external valuation from third parties.

J) Venture Drilling AS
The company is 50% owned by Peirolia Drilling ASA

Drilling equipment in Petrolin Services (100% owned by Petrolin Drilling ASA) was sold to Venture Drilling in 2008. The equipment is sold for mUSD 6, based on the price established in
an external valuation from third parties,

k) Variaus
Accrued expenses involved In tax audivtaxes in Petrolia Drilling ASA with subsidiories and associates and in companies related to board and top management of Pettolia Drilling are
covered by the company pending a final result of the matters

[NOTE 23 SPECIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ITEMS

(amounts in TSI 1 000) 2008 2007
Interest income
Interest income from eurrent bank deposits 6176 3351
Prafit from liquidity reserve @ 849
Interest on trade receivables [ A4
6 183 4243
Flnancial income
Gain from sale of shares 10 54
Foreign exchange gain - net®) 142 996 4]
143 066 54
Interest expenses
Interest expenses bonds 39 205 11 062
Other interest expense 0 27
Interest financial lensing 1 842 4562
Interest expenses o related parties 0 2163
Interest forward contract 2301 4192
43 148 22 005
Financial expenses
Value ehange shares at fair value through profit and loss 2612 B76
Forelgn exchange loss - net®) 5745
Other finaneial expenses 21793 5 260
24 405 11881
Net finance 81498 =29 390
#)Foreign exchange is presented nef In the Income statement
Foreign exchange gain 255 789 6912
Forelgn exchange loss 112 793 12657
Foreign exchange - net 142 996 =5 745
|NOTE 24 OTHER EQUITY NOT RECOGNISED THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Camount i USD 1 D00) Remeasurement
Avniluble-for- Currency of share in other
sile investment ir fons I Total
Al 1 January 2007 187 16 0 303
Available-for-sale investment sold -187 -187
Remeasurement of shares in assoclated company -3 989 -3 989
Currency lation differences in 2007 -1 652 -3 652
At 31 December 2007 0 -3 536 -3 989 =7 525
Remeasurement of shares in subsidiary 4053 4053
1ssue expenses in subsidiory -688 -68%
Currency ion differences in 2008 =12 003 -12 093
At 31 D 2008 0 =15 629 -624 =16 253

|N0'I'IC 25 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Petrojack ASA (39.95% owned)

Afer the balance sheet date Petrojack has taken delivery of the Petrojack IV, which commenced o drilling contract with PTT Exploration & Production Public Company Limited
shorily after delivery. In order 1o secure financing for the lnst instalment regarding the construction of Petrojack 1V, Petrojack 11 was sold to Saipem (Portugal) Comerclo Maritimo
S U LDA. Following the sale of the Petrojack 11, the Company redeemed bonds in nccordance with the amended loan agreements in the Bond Loans, approved on the bondholders
meetings on 19 November 2008, The net proceeds after redemption of bonds were used to pay the final yard instalment for Petrojack 1V

s
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PetraMENA ASA
After the balance sheet date, PelroMENA (subsidiary of Petrolin Drilling) has setively been working to secure additional financing and/or solutions for the rigs under construction

Bondholder's meetings

On 16 January 2009 0 bondholder meeting wis arranged in each of the two bond loans of PetraMENA ASA (the “Company”) with 1SIN NO 001031608.6 and ISIN NO 001039578 3
(the “Loans"). The bondholders’ meetings in cach of the two Loans approved the proposed amendments, however with certain conditions, set by a group of bondholders (the “Group™),
that were to be agreed upon in a separate Subsequent Agreement within 30 January 2009

The Campany and the Group did not reach an agreement on the final Subsequent Agreement within the original deadline of 30 January 2009, The Company will continie to work
towards an agreement with the trustee Morsk Tillitsmann.

Conditienal offer (MOU) for PetroRig 111 from an internaiional drilling contractor
Larsen Oil & Gas (LOG) as Business Manoger for PetroRig 111 Pto Lid has received a conditional offer (MOU} of mUSD 545 for the drilling rig PewroRig 11 owned by PetroRiy
111 Pre Lid (including the Pemex contraet).

Postponement of yard Instalment and bank financing

Reference is made to the Company Update distribuied on 19 December 2008 and the notice from PetroMENA ASA (the Company) distributed on 2 February 2009 regurding
posiponement of the second last yard installment for Petrorig 111 a5 well a5 the financing of the remaining funding need for Petrorig 1.

The Company is plensed 1o announce that the Company’s subsidiary Petrorig 111 Pre Ltd and Jurong Shipyard have signed an agreement regarding the pestpenement of the mUSL 105
yard instalment related to Petrorig 111 that was due on 31 January 2009 Under the new agresment between the parties, the abovementioned instalment will be due on delivery date for
Petrorig ML

Furthermore, the Compnny's subsidiary Petrorig | Ple Ltd has received a commitment letter from Lloyds TSB Bank ple, which is subject to the satisfaction of certain terms and
conditions sel out therein, regarding the financing of mUSD 200 out of the mUSD 300 required bank debi for Petrorig T under a mUSD 300 1st lion structure

The Company is working actively with another bank 1o provide the other mUSD 100 under the loan strueture.

Motice from bondholder's meetings

Reference is made 1o the summons letter published on 25 Febriary 2000 by Petromena ASA (“the Company”) and its subsidiary Petrorig 111 Pte Ltd. On 11 March 2009 & bondholder
meeting was arranged in each of two bond loans of Petromenn ASA with ISIN NO 00103 1608.6 (mNOK 2,000 Loan) and 151N NO 0010395783 (mUUSD 264 Loan) and the loan of
Petrorig 11 Pre Lid with ISIN MO 001039578 3 (mNOK 1,600 Loan) (together the “Loans™).

The bondholders' meetings in the MNOK 2,000 Loan and the mUSD 264 Loan voted in favor of the proposal

For the mNOK 1,600 Loan, the proposal, including extending the mUSD 50 equity injection into Petrorg 111 Pre Ltd until December 2009, was not approved. However, the bondholders
in the mNOK 1,600 Loan have given Petrorig 111 Pre Lid an approval 1o extend the grace period, which currently matures on 13 March 2009, until sueh time as the bondholders gives
Petrorig 11 Pre Lid 2 banking days written notice of the explry of the grace period

Based on this the Company and its subsidiaries will continue 10 complete the work with the bank financing as well as pursue the MOU related to Petrorig 111
i
Voluntary switch of currency in the NOK 2,000 bond loan
Reference is made to the notice letter from the hondholders meeting on 11 March 2009 for the bond laan issued by Petromenn ASA {“the Company”) with ISIN NO 001031608 6
(mNOK 2,000 Loan) {the “Loan™)

Al the hondholders meeting for the Loan, the bondholders approved the introduction of a new USD tranche under the Loan under similar terms ns the existing Loan, Bondholders who,
an a valuntary basis, wants to switch into the USD tranche must retum the attached Aceeptance Form to Pareto Securities AS on fux + 47 22 87 87 10 within 16:00 Oslo time on
Tuesday 24 March 2009

PetroMENA ASA - regarding voluntary switch of currency in the MNOK 2,000 bond loan
Reference is made to the notice sent on 17 March 2009 regarding the bond loan issued by PetroMENA ASA ("the Company") with ISIN NO 001031608 6
(mNOK 2,000 Loan) (the "Loan"),

The Trustee has informed the Company that all the conditions for the offer 1o voluntary switch from a NOK tranche under the Loan to a USD wranche under the Loan must be met before
conversion. The previous announced exchange date of 25 March 2009 s therefore postponed. The Company will retum with o new date for the exchange date when all the conditions
for the voluntary switch are mel.

Conditional offer (MOU) for PetroRig 1 from an internntional drilling contracior
Petrorig | Ple Lid a company 100% controlled by PetroMENA ASA, has signed n Memorandum of Understanding with an intemational drilling contractor for the sale of the drilling rig
Petrorig [ for mUSD 450,

Status PetroMENA ASA
Reference is made to the latest annot is from the company cerning finaneing of PetroRig 1, hereunder approval given in the bondholder meeting March 11 2009 and MOU
concerning sale of PetroRig 1 and 111

The company has received notice of default for bond loans
I5IN: NO 0010352644 -FRN PetroRig 111 Pre Lid,

ISIN: NO 001031608,6 - 2 75% PetroMENA ASA and
15IN: NO 001039578,3 - 10,85% PetroMENA ASA

The muin renson for defiult notice under the FRN lonn is the deferred increase of mUSD 50 as equity.

The company has previously stated that the yard has nccepted posiponement of the mUSD 105 instalment until defivery in January 2010, Consequently also the equity inerease of
mUSD 50 could be postponed

The defuilt notice also includes the failure to take delivery March 31 2009

The company hns no obligation to take delivery March 31,

Technieal neceptance has taken place and final delivery is expected in a couple of weeks

1t s Further argued that sullicient information has not been provided to the bondholders, The company has done its utmost to supply all required documentation

Therefore the company rejects that any defiuilt exist

‘The company continues to secure financing of PetroRig I in d with the bondholders approval in the meeting March 11 2009,
The company also continues to complete the due dillingence on the sale of PetroRig Land 11 together with the potential buyers,

Status PetroMENA ASA
Reference is made to the latest annol is from the pany.
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As previously stated, PetroMENA ASA hns received notice of defbult for bond lonns ISIN: NO 001035264.4 - FRN PetroRig 111 Pte Ltd, ISIN: NO
001031608 6 - 9.75% PetroMENA ASA and [SIN: NO 001039578 3 - 10.85% PetroMENA ASA. Norsk Tillitsmann stated that no enforcement action was taken.

PetroMENA ASA has continued with the acceptance procedure and prepared for delivery nccording to carlier statements, and worked with the MOU's
regarding a sale of rigs os an alternative to reaching an agreement with bondholders.

PetroMENA ASA has been informed that Norsk Tillitsmann has, without any notice to the company, and with reference to the defiult notice,
enforced their share pledge in PetroRig [, 11 and 11 all registered in Singapere.

Norsk Tillitsmann has further enforeed the assignment of the construetion contracts, hereunder notified the shipyard to take instructions from them

They have also inted rep tatives from bondholders to do Inspection and notified that they will take delivery of the 58 Petrorig 1

PeiroMENA ASA together with subsidinries dispute that the loan agreements are in default and have consequently filed for injunctions in Singapore and Nerway stating that the
enforcements are invalid

The Yard has declared nnd PeiroRig 1 Lid aceepied delivery of the rig 14 April. The action from Norsk Tillitsmann is for the time being preventing PetroMENA ASA and its subsidinry to
properly arrange delivery and/or sale of Rig |

If not the delivery instalment is paid within 14 days the Yard will be eniitled to terminaie the contract.

PetroMENA ASA

Reference is made 1o o previous announcement regarding the filing of preliminary injunctions both in Singapore and Norway against enforcement actions initiated by

Marsk Tillismann on behalf of the bondholders

Singapore court hns decided that the case shall be fully argued after 20 May 2009, Pending further hearing Rig 1 is not to be taken out of Singapore without prior notice to the court.

Oslo court (Oslo Byfogdembete) has today dismissed PetroMENA's filing for preliminary injunction

Based on the court decisl the
bondholders.

pany will continue its efforts to secure the companies values for the creditors and its sharcholders, hereunder its claim for damages against the




Petrolia Drilling ASA
INCOME STATEMENT

{Amounts in USD 1 000)

Revenue
Total revenue

Depreciation
Operating expenses
Total operating expenses

Operating result

Interest income from group companies
Interest income

Financial income

[mpairment of non-current financial assets
Impairment of current financial assets
Interest expense to group companies
Interest expenses

Financial expenses

Result before taxes

Tax on result

Result of the year

Attributable to:

Transferred to/from other equity/uncovered loss

Transferred from share premium fund
Transferred from other equity

Parent company

Note 2008 2007
0 6127

0 6127

1322

1 5295 2 940
5295 4262

5295 1 865

6 8 828 6309
1292 1278

83 313 897

3,5 204 650 876
8 2612 0
6 5164 74
10 532 13733

58 946 5633

-193 766 -0 967

2 11279 -10 265
-205 045 299

0 299

-160 433 0

-44 612 0

-205 045 299



Petrolia Drilling ASA
BALANCE SHEET PER 31.12,

(Amounts in USD 1 000)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assels
Deferred income tax assetes

Financial non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in joint venture
Investments in associated companies
Loan to group companies

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Debtors

Loan to joint venture
Other debtors

Investments
Market based investment shares
Investment in money market fund

Bank deposits

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

(3]

o th B e

10

Parent company

2008 2007

11 210 22 489
11 210 22 489
202759 246 200
52 553 56 025
10 866 105313
74 244 109 648
340 421 517 186
351 631 539 675
29 764 6 000
62 360

29 826 6 360
871 3483

12 14

883 3497
15178 1141
45 887 10 998
397 518 550 672




Petrolia Drilling ASA
BALANCE SHEET PER. 31.12,

{Amounts in USD 1 000)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Paid-in equity

Share capital

Own shares

Share premium fund

Retained earnings

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bond loans

Loan from group companies

Current liabilities

Short term portion of long term liabilities
Trade creditors

Public duties payable

Other current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Bergen/Oslo, 28 April 2009

Chairman of"the Board

Gun Marit Stenersen
Board member

U

Terje elleba
Board member

T
Jlws: TV 2hre
Unni F. Tefre
Board member

Note

11
12
12

12

12

15

/

Parent company

2008 2007
93 568 93 568
-486 -319
123 119 283 552
216 201 376 802
0 45134
45 134
216 201 421 935
69 855 0
99 285 1 934
169 140 1934
95 436
1426 183
18 23
10 733 31158
12 177 126 803
181 317 128 737
397 518 550 672
Leif Holst
rd member

ars Moldestad
Managing director



Petrolia Drilling ASA

Cash flow statement

(Amounts in LISD 1 000)

Parent company

2008 2007
Cash flows from aperating activities
Result before taxes -193 766 -9 967
Taxes paid in the period 0 0
Loss/gain from sale of non-current assets 0 -6 073
Loss/gain from sale of current assets =70 0
Depreciation 0 1322
Impairment of non-current financial assets 204 650 0
Impairment of current financial assets 2612 876
Change in trade creditors 1243 -378
Change in other provisions -8 142 -496
Currency translation differences -13 989 447
Net cash generated from operating activities -7 462 =14 269
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0 6422
Proceeds from sale of shares and investments in other companies and liquidity reserves 2614 57 931
Investment in shares in other companies -2 858 -35 982
Investment in shares in subsidaries -63 319 0
Net cash used in investing activities -03 563 8 371
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bond loan 94 609 2 664
Current liabilities from purchase of shares in other companies -11 992 -8 851
Change in loan to group companies 115 468 9700
Repayment of bond loan -103 898
Purchase of own shares/issue costs -690 -1 §19
Net cash used in financing activities 93 497 1 694
Net cash flow of the period 22 472 -4 204
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1140 5344
Exchange gain (loss) on cash and cash equivalents -8 435 0
Cash balance at 31 December 10 15 178 1140
Specification of cash and cash equivalents at period end:
Bank deposits 10 15178 1140
Whereof restricted bank account is 10 6 646 0
Specification of eash and cash equivalents at period end:
Bank deposits 10 15178 1140
Whereof suspense bank account is 10 6 646 0
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Accounting policies and general information

Introduction

Petrolia Drilling ASA was established 13 March, 1997. The company owns, charters and invests in
drilling vessels for offshore, deepwater oil and gas exploration and development drilling,

Petrolia Drilling ASA is registered and domiciled in Norway.

The company is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange.
The financial statements per 31 December were passed by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2009.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act of
1998 and generally accepted accounting principles in Norway.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associates
Subsidiaries, joint venture and associates are valued at cost in the financial statements. The
investment is assessed at acquisition cost of the shares unless impairment has been necessary.

Group contribution to subsidiary, with the deduction of tax, is recognised as increased cost price for
the shares,

Dividends/group contributions are recognised in the income statement in the same year as allocated in
the subsidiary/joint venture. If dividends/group contributions materially exceed the share of retained
earnings after the acquisition the excess part is considered as refund of invested capital and deducted
the value of the investment in the balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Expenses directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

When the company purchases treasury shares (the company’s equity share capital), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs net of income taxes is deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to
the company’s equity holders.

Borrowing expenses
Expenses involved in the raising of bond loan are capitalised and charged as expense over the term of
the loan.

Policies for recognition of revenue and expenses

Income is recognised as earned and expenses are recognised in the same period as belonging income.
Income and expenses related to activities that last after the turn of the year are accrued according to
number of days that the activity lasts before and after the balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-current assets

Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a non-current asset
exceeds recoverable amount, the asset is reviewed for impairment. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows. If carrying amount exceeds both net realizable value and recoverable amount (present value
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from continued use/ownership) impairment is made to the higher of net realizable value and
recoverable amount, Previous impairments are reversed to the extent that the basis of the impairment
is no longer present.

The use of estimates

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and standards it will be necessary to use estimates and assumptions that have
impact on the financial statements. Actual amounts may differ from these estimates. The impact of
change of accounting estimates are recognised in the period that the estimate is changed.

Change of accounting policies
The impact of changes of accounting policies and correction of errors in previous years’ financial
statements are recognised directly against equity.

Classification of balance sheet items

Assets determined for permanent possession or use are classified as non-current assets. Other assets
are classified as current assets. Receivables that are to be repaid within one year is in any case
classified as current assets. By classification of liabilities analogue criteria are used.

Accounts receivable

Trade receivables and other receivables are recognised at nominal value after deduction of provision
for bad debt. Provision for bad debt is made on the basis of an individual assessment of each
receivable.

Foreign currency

Petrolia Drilling has with effect from 1 January 2008 changed presentation currency from NOK to
USD. All comparative figures have been converted and presented in USD for information purposes.
Monetary items in foreign currency are estimated according to the current exchange rate at the end of
the accounting year.

Taxes

The tax expense in the income statement consists both of taxes payable for the accounting
period, and the period's changes in deferred tax. Deferred tax is calculated as 28% of the
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Temporary differences, both positive and negative, are
offset within the same period. Deferred tax assets are recorded in the balance sheet when it is
more likely than not that the tax assets will be utilized. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented net in the balance sheet.

Related parties

Information as to which persons and companies that are considered as related parties is stated in note
15 to the accounts. Agreements, transactions and outstanding accounts with related parties are
described in the same note.

Statement of cash flow

The statement of cash flow is prepared according to the indirect method. The indirect method
involves reporting of gross cash flow from investment and financing activities, while the accounting
result is reconciled against net cash flow from operational activities. Cash in hand and cash
equivalents comprise cash, bank deposit and interest bearing investments in fund.
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Contingencies
Contingencies are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will occur and the value of the
settlement can be measured reliably. Other contingencies, if any, are referred to in note.

Conditional profits
Conditional profits and earnings are not recognised.

Events after the balance sheet date

New information about conditions existing at the balance sheet date regarding the accounting period
has been taken into the account in the financial statements according to standard estimation
principles. Events related to circumstances that have taken place after the balance sheet date are
referred to in note.
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[NOTE | REMUNERATION ETC, |

The company has no employees.

Board of Directors’ fee

The following fee has been paid to the members of the board. 2008 2007

(Amounis in USD 1000)

Klaus P, Tollefsen - Chairman of the board 192 51

Terje Helleba 192 k]

Leif Holst 192 38

Unini Tefre k2] 0

Gun Marit Stenersen 34 0

Berge Gerdt Larsen il 38

Total 645 166

Directors’ foes for 2007 have been paid in 2008 in accordance with ordinary resolution.

The Managing Director is employed in Larsen Oil & Gas AS For the fiseal year 2007 the Annual General Meeting granted the Monaging Director a bonus amounting
to TUSD 385,

The Group has a busi i with Larsen Oil & Gas AS. For the fiseal year 2007 the Annual General Meeitng has granted the M 11 bonus
of TUSD 385,

Auditors 2008 o0
(Amaiils i USD 1000)

Statutory nudit (inel.icchnical accounting nssi ) 159 a8
Certifieation services 0 5
Tax nssistance ! 10 129
Other services *! 62 182
Total fec 231 415

" Including TUSD 128 8 regarding services related to prospeet and two information memorandums in 2007
* Ineluding TUSD 137 2 regarding services related 1o prospect and two information memorandums in 2007

[NOTE 2 TAXES |
Bagis for tax eharges, change In deferved tax and payable tax

(Amaunis in USD 100i) 2008 2007
Resuli before tax charge =190 294 -9 967
Value chnng:s market related bonds | 822 876
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 107374 491
Expenses recognised directly against equity 649
Change in temporary differences 1351 3793
Group contribution 62200 0
Currenny differences -16 682 0
Taxable income of the year =37 931 =13 041
Payable tax 28% ] 0
Payable tax of result of the year 0 L]
Change deferred 1ax nsset 11 280 =10 265
Tas charge 11280 =10 265
Calenlntion of deferred tax nsset 2008 2007
MNon-current nssets a
Receivables -10278 -13 294
Other non-current liabilities 1 584 1588
Profit and loss nccount 1671 1732
Total temporary differences -7623 9974
Carry forward loss -12412 70 343
Basis for deferred tax asset in the balance sheet 40 035 -0 317
Deferred tax assel, 28% -11210 -22 489
Ineluding not recognised in the balance sheet 0 0
Deferred tnx usset in the balance sheet -11210 -22 489
Tax obligation is inated and ealeulated in NOK, and eonveried 1o USD.

Capitalised deferred tax asset on net tax reducing temporary differences and on carry forward losses for tax purposes are based on the assessment that future
taxable profit in the group will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The Norwegian tax authotites notified the company in 2006 of a tax audit for the period from the formation of the company in 1997 until the accounting year
2005. The company has as of today not received notice of any changes affecting the tnx position of the company
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NOTE 3 SUBSIDIARIES |

lnvmmmln i :ub:idinric! are n:c.'r,tgni!".'d nnnut‘ding to the cost method.

Company Business Share- Voling Result 2008 Equity per Book value Book value
(Amounts in USD 1000) ndilress holding share 31.12.08 2008 2007
Petrolia Drilling 11 AS Oslo 100 % 100% 7018 31827 166 328 25918
Petrolin Invest AS Oslo 100 % 100 % -17 958 21014 21 000 0
Petralia Dnlling Lid Virgin Island / Jersey 100 % 100 % 126 -2814 [ 1]
PetroMEMNA ASA (group) Oslo 51,5% 5% =369 301 57576 15431 220 282
Tatal 202 759 246 200

The shares in Patrolia Drilling 11 were impaired in 2005 Following the purchase of the 10T shares in 2007, the impairment of mUSD 140 4

has been reversed in 2008 based on present value and future cash Nlows in Petrolia Services AS and Petrolia Rigs AS,

Peirolia Drilling Lid is controlled by a trusi on Jersey. Petrolia Drilling ASA is "beneficial ovwner” of the trusi

The shares in Petrolia Invest AS were impaired with mUSD 18.0 in 2008,

The company owns 76 057 118 shares in PetroMena ASA, This makes 51 47 % of PetroMena ASA, The shares have been impalred to stock market price per
31.12.2008. Market price for the share at the trn of the year is NOK 1 42/USD 0.20 per share. The impairment is based on the current financial situation of PetroMENA
ASA and amounted 1o mUSD 232.6,

[NOTE 4 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE |

Investment in joint venture is estimated according to the cost method

Company Business Share-halding Yoling Result 2008 Equity per Book value Book value
(Amaunis in USD 1000) nddress share 31.12.08 2008 007
Venlture Drillinu AS Kristinngand 50% 50 % 56 681 67 892 £2 553 56 025

Venture Drilling AS is a joint venture cooperalion between Sinvest ASA and Petrolia Drilling ASA. In 2006 Venture Drilling AS has entered into an agreement on
lease of DS "Deep Venture”, formerly DS "Valentin Shashin”, for a period of five years with option on another 6 two-year periods

Venture Drilling AS has entered into a management agreement with Larsen Oil & Gas Lid. on technical and operational gement of DS "Deep Venture™

On behalf of Venture Diilling AS Larsen Oil & Gas Lid has entered into a contract for the drilling vessel with ExxonMobil for a 18 month assignment in
West-Alfrica, Deep Venture commenced this contract June 30 2007, The coniract was reeently extended, and DS Deep Venture will be engaged for Maersk Ol
Angola until July 25 2009, at a day rate of USD 423,000 afler witholding 1ax. Yenture Drilling has agreed to a further 18 manths contract with Maersk Oil Angola
ut o day rate of USD 495,000 after witholding tax. The rates are base rates, i.e minimum rates, depending on where the drillship will operate under the contract.

Petrolis Drlling ASA and Sinvest ASA guarantee the performance of the all obligations of Venture Drilling under the contract with Maersk Oil Angola.

[NOTE § INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE |

Investment in associate is estimated aceording to the cost method

Company Business Share- Vating Result 2008 Equity per Book value Book value
{Amonnis in USD 1000) Address Tolding righis 31.12.08 2008 2007
Peirojnck ASA (group) Oslo 39.95% 39.95% =124 756 55 965 10 866 105343
12007 the eompany increased its shareholding in Petrajack ASA. The acquisition was fi | by an | of the company's equity.

The company's shares in Patrojack ASA have been impaired to stock market price per 31,12 2008, Market price for the share at the turn of the year is NOK 2 93/USD 0.42 per share
The company has called for an external estimation of value. The estimation is based on present value and future cash fows from the activities of Petrajock 1V.
The estimation of value indicates a value far above market price

[NOTE 6 INTERCOMPANY ACCOUNTS |

(Amonnis in USD 1000} 2008 2007
Nonscurrent receivables

Petrolia Drilling [T AS 34 880 71982
Petrolin Services AS 19375 37653
Petrolia Drilling Ltd. 10 608 13 306
Provision for bad debis 10618 =13 294
Tatal non-enrrent 74 244 109 647
Mon-current liabilities

Petrolia Rigs AS 08016 718
Petrolia Drilling Ltd. -1269 1215
Totnl non-current =09 285 1933

Interest on non-current inlercompany accounts are ealeulated ot NIBOR/LIBOR + 2.25%

[NOTE 7 OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES |

{Amounis in USD 1060) 2008 2007
Advance payment forward contract 0 188
Prepind expenses and v.atowing 62 171
Dividend Venture Drilling 29 764 6070

Total 29 B26 6429
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|NﬂTE 8 MARKET BASED INVESTMENT SHARES |
Company No, of shares Cosi price Market Book value Book value
(Amouns in USD 1000) shares value 2008 2007
Island (il & Cas Ple 5 128 205 4432 871 471 3483

The company is quoted on the London Stock Exchange

[NOTE 9 INVESTMENT IN MONEY MARKET FUND ]

{Amounis in USD 1000 2008 2007
Holbery Likviditet - money markei fund 12 14
Total 12 14

Shares in interest bearing fund have been assessed ot fiir value at balange sheet date. Retumn of the period has been reinvested in the fund

[NOTE 10 BANK DEPOSITS |

{Amounis in USI3 1000) 2008 2007
Bank deposits 15178 1141

Total 15178 1141
Incl. deposit on suspence necount as seeurity for the bond loan 6 646 o

[NOTE 11 SHARE CAPITAL |

Share capital of Petrolia Drilling ASA per 31,12 2008

Number Nominal Book value
value
Shares 1 012 596 745 NOK 0,50 USD 93 568

Per 31 December 2008 Petrolia Drilling ASA holds 5 250 024 trensury shares, corresponding to 0.52 % of the shares outstanding in Petrolin Drilling ASA.
Per 31 December 2007 Petrolia Drilling ASA holds 3 450 024 trensury shares, corresponding 1o 0.34 % of the shares outstanding in Petrolin Drilling ASA.

List of the major shareholders:
Petrolia Drilling ASA had a total of 6 129 shareholders per 31.12.08. The table below shows the company's 20 largest shareholders per 31 December 2008 according to the VPS
(shares with nominal value NOK 0.50);

Shnreholders No. of shnres Shareholding
1 Petrojack ASA 253 000 000 2499 %
2 Independent Oil & Resources ASA 227952747 2251%
3 JPMorgan Chase Bank S/A F+C Invest Trust 29 540 000 2902%
4 DNO Invest AS 23 469 385 232%
5 NET AS 15 984 000 1,58 %
[ State Street Bank and Trust Co. 10 188 761 1,01 %
7 Jagob Haugen 10 000 00O 0,99 %
% Odin Offshore § 500 000 0,84 %
9 Danske Bank A/S 7114 239 0,70 %
10 Goldman Sachs Int Equity 6512246 0,64 %
I JPMorgan Chase Bank 6 180 000 0,61 %
i2 Thor Idar Pedersen 5542 000 0,55 %
13 Askeladden Invest 5 300 300 0,52%
14 Societe Generale Paris 5211123 051 %
15 Mesttun Invest AS 5 000 000 049%
16 SEB Private Bank 8 A Luxembourg 4 625 000 046%
17 Molasset AS 4 496 799 044 %
1% Citibank N, A New York Branch 4412979 044 %
19 Inereased Ol Recovery AS 4 350 000 0,43 %
20 Troika Invest AS 3 930 000 0,39 %

Others 166037 142 36,15%
Total no. of shares before treasury shares 1 007 346 721 99,48 %
Trensury shares 5250024 0,52%
Total no. of shares 1012596 745 100,00 %

Shares owned by members of the bonrd nnd other primary insiders
The table below shows shareholding of members of the board and munaging director and other related parties (shares with nominal value NOK 0.50).
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Name 31.12.2008
Members of the board and mannging director:

Klaus P. Tollefsen, Chairman of the board a
Unni F. Tefre, Board member 0
Gun Marit Stenersen, Board member 0
Terje O. Hellebo, Board member 3 424
Leif Holst, Board member 1) 1924 762
Lars Moldestad, Managing Director 2) 4496 799
Bernt Skeie, CFO of Petrolia Drilling ASA and PetroMENA ASA 400 000
Other primary insiders:

Petrojack ASA, Lars Moldestad is Managing Director, Berge G, Larsen and Terje O. Helleba are Board members 253 000 000
Independent Ol & Resources ASA, Bernt Skeie is Managing Dircetor 4) 227952747
DNO Invest AS, Berge G Larsen is Chairman of the board 23 469 383
NET AS 5) 15 984 000
Inerensed Qil Recovery AS, Berge G. Laraen 3) is board member, Lars Moldestad is Chairman of the boord 4 350 00D
Time Critieal Petroleum Resources AS, Berge G. Larsen is owner of the company 2018

13974 762 shares are owned hy Neuman Invest AS where Leif Holst 15 5cncru§ manager 950 000 shares are owned by Novaer AS where Leil Holst is the
company's Chairman of the board,

2) 4 494 799 shares are owied through 100 % owned company, Molasset AS.

3) Berge G. Larsen indirectly owns 4 352 108 shares through Inerensed Oil Recovery AS and Time Critieal Petroleum Resources AS. Inerensed Oil Recovery
AS is controlled by Berge G. Larsen. Berge G, Larsen is board member of the company. Time Critical Petroleum Resources AS is 100 % owned by

Berge G, Lamsen, Berge G. Larsen is the company’s chairman of the board. Increased Ol Recovery AS owna 100 % in Larsen Oil & Gas AS

4) Incrensed Ol Recovery AS owns 29.47 % of Independent Oil & Resources ASA

5)MNET AS owns 26.7% in Incrensed Oil Recovery AS

[NOTE 12 EQUITY

Changes in equity of the yenr

(Amaountg in USD 1000) Share capital Own shares  Share preminm Other
fund equity Tatal
Equity 31.12.07 93 568 319 283 552 45134 421 936
Purchase/sale of ireasury shares -168 -522 -690
Result of the year =160 433 =44 612 =203 045
Equity 31.12,08 93 568 -186 123119 o 216 201
Per 31 December 2008 the company owns 5 250 024 own shares, These shares have been acquired ot an average acquisition cost of NOK 2.21 per share
Per 31 December 2007 the company owns 3 450 024 own shares. The shares have been purchased at an average purchase cost of NOK 2.29 per share.
[NOTE 13 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES |
The company has the following non-current linbilities:
{Ameunis in USD 1000} 2008 2007
Intercompany labilites 99 285 1934
Bond loan 69 §55 0
Totnl non-current linbilities 169 140 1934
Current portion of bond loans 0 95 436
Total 169 140 97370

The company has no habilities wath due date later than five years from the end of the accounting year per 31 12,08, There are no instalments due in 2009,

Bond loan NOK 500 millian, raised in 2008,
In 2008 the company has issued a new bond loan of nominal value mNOK 500, The loan was disbursed 20 June 2008

The loan has been raised to refinance the band of mNOK 250 and for general corporate purpeses which may include investments in other companies/ussets within the oil/oflshore seetor.

An interest rate of 12.0 % shall be calculated. The interest is to be settled semi-annually, first time 20 Decerber 2008, The loan is listed on Oslo Stock Exchange

The loan shall be repaid in installments as follows:

Date Amount

On 20 June 2011 NOK 100 000 000
On the maturity date 20 June 2012 the remaining loan

The following borrowing ferms are eonneeted to the loan:
MNOK 45 s deposited in a DSR Account 1o serve interest payment of the loan
Petrolia Drilling has an option 1o redeem the loan inelusive of interest in total or partly at the following terms:

Period Price
Redemption in the period 21 June 2008 4ill 19 June 2009 106,00%
Redemption i the period 20 June 2009 6l 19 June 2010 104.50%
Redemption in the period 20 June 2010 1l 19 June 2011 103.50%
Redemption io the period 20 June 2011 till the expiry of the term of the loan 103.25%

According to the borrowing agreement Petrolin Drilling can not incur mortgage debt, encumbrances, guarantees, nght of retention or any other type of morigage for present or future
ASKELS OF give any guarantee or compensation, exemptions may, however, be made provided it is in compliance with normal market practice
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Covennnts
Petrolia Drilling can not, according to the borrowing agreement, pay dividends, purchase own shires or make payment to the shareholders beyond 30% of the group's profit aller taxes
the preceding year, without approval from the lenders. Nor ean the company without approval dispose of o close down a significant part of the enterprise or ehange the character of its
aperations

In addition Petrolin Drilling is responsible that the company mainiains a coverage rafio (ratio of total assets to total debt) of 2.0x or higher on each Balance Sheet Reporting Date,
which is every quarter. Total assets are the aggregate of (i) the market value of the shares in listed companies, (i) the book value of shares in non-listed companies, goodwill dedueted
and (1) free cash. Gross debt s the aggregate book value of the financial indebredness according to TFRS in the necounts

There 15 no breach in the borrowing terms per 31,12 2008,

NOTE 14 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION - GUARANTEE

Petrolin Drilling ASA stand security for leasing equipment in Independet Tool Pool AS (100% aowned by Petrolia Services AS) of mUSD 65.5

Petrolin Drilling ASA and Sinvest ASA guarantee the performance of the all obligations of Venture Drilling under the contract with Maersk Oil Angola

[NOTE 15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES |
(Amaiits 1 USD 1000) 2008 2007
Accrued interest expenses (rom bond loan 238 8709
Debt to Independent Oilfield Rentals Lid 1935 1 955
Accrued expenses 218 180
Loan from other pani 8322 20314
Total other current linbilities 10733 31158

Loan from other ecompanies meludes loan regarding acquisition of shares by mUSD 83

[NOTE 16 RELATED PARTIES |

Sharcholding of related parties are discussed i note 11
Some persons and companies will have several positions in relation to the company and may, ind
Aceording to the group’s assessment this comes into force for the following:

tof the ¢ tances, have different interests s regards the Petrolia Drilling group

) Berge Gerdt Larsen

Berge G. Larsen is chairman of the board of DNO Invest AS and of Larsen Ol & Gas AS

He is also board member of PeiroMena ASA, PetroJack ASA and Incrensed Oil Recovery AS. Petrolia Drilling ASA owns 51.5% m PetroMena ASA and 39.95%
in Petrolack ASA.

b) Larsen Ol & Gax AS
The Group has entered into a business manogement agreement with Larsen Oi] & Gas AS (LOCG),

Larsen Oil & Gas AS (LOG) is confrolled by Berge G. Larsen. Lars Moldestad 15 managing director of LOG

The agreement with LOG AS for Petrolia Drilling has the following main principles:

LOG is to take eare ol all current administration and place at disposal managing director for the company. LOG shall also take care of
accounting and budgeting, hereunder reporting to the company’s board. LOG shall attend to the company’s external reporting and the
demand for information that is made to o company noted on the stock exchange, LOG shall attend to the company's share register. LOG
shall assist in the commercial and technical operation of the company’s vessels, The agreement with LOG remains in foree until the parties
agree on termination, yet the agreement can be terminated subject to 6 months' writien notice by legal eause. Legal cause is for example
cease of activity in the company, merger with another company, establishment of own management, material change in activities ete. For
these services LOG shall receive an annual compensation of mMNOK 3

In 2008 an additional fee at mNOK 2 has been paid This is in accordance with the resolution at the ardinary general meeting at May 28 2008

¢) Larsen il & Gas Ltk in Aberdeen, Scotland
The company is 100% controlled by Berge G. Larsen
The company 15 dnilling contractor for 55 “Petrolia™ and DS "Deep Venture”

Venture Drilling AS (50% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA) hus entered into o management agreement for technical and operational management

of the rig DS "Deep Venture” Agreed fee is USD 5 000 per day when the rig is under drilling contract, USD 6 000 per day during renctivating ond
USD 3 000 per day if the rig 15 not i operation or is moved without being under drilling contract. Manager may obtain a bonus ofup to USD 1 000 000
in connection with the reactivating, provided certain demands are met. From October 2008, daily management fee when the rig is under drilling
contract has inerensed to USD 10 000,

Peirolia Drilling ASA has entered into an agreement in connection with the management agreement between Yenture Drilling AS and

Larsen Oil & Gas Ltd which commits the company to render an annual fee of mNOK 3 1o Larsen Oil & Gas Lid. The agreement is based on

the fact that the agreement with Venture Drilling AS does not give Larsen Oil & Gas Lid sufficient income o cover the company's operaling
expenses and secure o satisfactory profit from the agreement, In 2008 mUSD 1.8 has been expensed.

In connection with operations in countries in West Afriea for DS Deep Venture, LOG branches/companies have been set up to support local matiers
The expenses involved are included in the operation expenses

d) Independent Oflfields Rentals Ltd.

Berge G. Larsen is indireetly minority shareholder

In 2005 the Group purchased drilling equipment from the company warth USD 1 955 000. The equipment was in its entirety used as part of’
contribution in kind ot the establishment of Venture Drilling AS, The amount is recognised in the balance sheet as other eurrent lability per. 31.12.08

e) PetraMenu ASA
The company is 51.5 % owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA

Petrolin Services (100% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA) has bought drilling equipment from PetroMENA ASA (51.5%0wned) in 2008,
Costprice for the equipment was mUSD 26.3 based on the price esiablished in an exiernal valuaiion from third parties



Peirolia Drilling ASA Parent notes to the financial statements 2008

1) Petrojack ASA
The company i 39 93% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA.

Petrolin Services AS has bought dnlling cquipment from Petrojack ASA in 2008
Costprice for the equipment waz mUSD 11,5, based on the price established in an external valuation from third parties.

&) Ventire Drilling AS
The company is 30% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA.

Drilling equipment in Petrolia Services (100% owned by Petrolia Drilling ASA) was sold to Venture Drilling in 2008,
The equipment is sold for mUSD 6.0, based on the price established in an external valuation from third parties

h) Various
Acerued expenses involved in iax audivioxes in Petrolin Drilling ASA with subsidiaries and associates and in companies related to boord and wop
management of Petrolin Drilling ASA are covered by the company pending a final result of the matters



PRICEAVATERHOUSE( COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers AS
Postboks 3984 - Dreggen
NO-5835 Bergen

Telephone +47 02316

Telefax +47 23 16 10 00

To the Annual Shareholders' Meeling of Petrolia Drilling ASA

Auditor's report for 2008

We have audited the annual financial stalements of Petrolia Drilling ASA as of December 31, 2008, showing a loss of

USD 205 045 055 for the parent company and a loss of USD 506 369 911 for the group. We have also audited the
information in the directors' report concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumplion, and the proposal for
the coverage of the loss. The annual financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent company and the
group. The financial statements of the parent company comprise the balance sheet, lhe statements of income and cash
flows and the accompanying notes. The financial statements of the group comprise the balance sheet, lhe slatements of
income and cash flows, the stalement of changes in equity and the accompanying notes. The regulations of the Norwegian
accounling act and accounting standards, principles and practices generally accepted in Norway have been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the parent company. International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU have been applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the group. These financial statemenls are the
responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and Managing Director. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and on other information according to the requirements of the Norwegian Act on Audiling and
Auditors,

We condueled our audil in accordance with laws, regulations and auditing standards and practices generally accepted in
Norway, including standards on auditing adopted by The Norwegian Institute of Public Accountants. These audiling
slandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misslatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporling the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimales made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. To the extent required
by law and auditing standards an audit also comprises a review of the management of the Company's financial affairs and its
accounting and internal cantrol systems, We believe thal our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

« the financial statements of the parent company have been prepared in accordance with the law and regulations and give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as of December 31,2008 and the results of ils operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting standards, principles and practices generally
accepted in Norway

« the financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with the law and regulations and give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the group as of December 31, 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU

s« the company's management has fulfilled its duty to produce a proper and clearly set out registration and documentation
of accounting information in accordance with the law and good bookkeeping practice in Norway

« the information in the directors' report concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption, and the
proposal for lhe coverage of the loss are consistent with the financial statements and comply with the law and
regulations.

Without qualifying our opinion above we emphasise that there is significant uncertainty as to the ability lo continue operations.
In a possible liquidation cost will incur which are not provided for and there is significant risk that a realisation of the
company’s and group’s assets will cause losses above the write-downs made in the financial slatements.

We also emphasise that creditors in subsidiaries in 2009 have declared subslantial parts of the group’s debt as defaull and
have laken legal possession of the shares in subsidiaries. The company conlests the realisation of the security and a final
outcome can not yet be eslablished.

We refer to furlher remarks about the issues above in the financial statements and the Annual Report.

Bergen, April 30, 2009
PricewaterhouseCoopers AS

Jon Haugervag
State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)

Note: This translalion from Norwegian has been prepared for information purposes only.

Alla Acendal Bargen Bodo Drammen Egersund Floro Frednkstad Forde Gardermoen Gol Hamar Hammerfest Hardanger Harslad Haugesund Kangsberg Kongsvingar
Kristiansand Lyngseidel Mandal Ma | Rana Malde Mosjoan Maloy Namsos Oslo Sandafjard Segndal Stavanger Stryn Tromse Trondhaim Tansberg Ulslemwk Algsung
PricownlerhousaGoopers navnel referarer lil individuelle madlemsfirmaer tilknyltet den verdensomspennende PricewalerhousaGoopers organisasjonen



RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that the financial statements for the period 1
January to 31 December 2008 have been prepared in accordance with current applicable
accounting standards, and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the entity and the group taken as a whole. We also confirm
that the Board of Directors' Report includes a true and fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the entity and the group, together

with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the entity and the group.

Bergen/Oslo, 28 April 2009

G Stevenen (jaoyr
Gun Marit Stenersen Terje O. Helleba
Board member Board member

Wil Eoe  dl
]'..cs:i[iolstﬂY %Jmnﬁ?\g:fegr%f“‘{ rs Mo d

Board member Board member Managing Director
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Principles for Corporate Governance
for
Petrolia Drilling ASA

Adopted by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2008.

1. Principles for corporate governance

1.1 Introduction

Petrolia Drilling ASA ("PDR" or the “Company") is dedicated to maintaining high
standards of Corporate Governance. Corporate Governance addresses the interaction
between the shareholders, the Board of Directors and the Executive Management. The
purpose of this document is to summarize the key principles of Corporate Governance
of Petrolia Drilling. The Board of Directors has also formulated a Code of Ethics.

PDR believes that maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance will improve
the quality of discussions and work to be carried out by the corporate bodies. A sound
Corporate Governance practice will strengthen confidence in the Company among
shareholders, the capital market and other interested parties and thus confribute to
value creation for the shareholders.

1.2  Relevant codes of practice

Being incorporated in Norway and listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange, PDR is subject fo
the Norwegian Code of Practice for Corporate Governance of 8 December 2005.
Adherence to the Code of Practice is based on a "comply or explain” principle,
whereby companies will be expected to either comply with the Code of Practice or
explain why they have chosen an alternative approach.

1.3 Relevant legislation

The Norwegian Public Limited Companies Act of 13 June 1997 no. 45 governs the
incorporation and management of Norwegian public limited companies. Further, PDR is
under numerous obligations provided for in relevant Norwegian and other jurisdictions'
laws in respect of the business operations carried out by the Company and its
subsidiaries
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2. Business and object
PDR's business is clearly defined in the Company's Articles of Association, as follows:

"The object of the company is to own and operate driling rigs, investments in
vessels, and everything that is connected herewith." (office translation)

PDR's objective and principal strategies for its business is related to activities in the
deepwater market, drilling for il and gas in ultra deep waters. PDR's priority area of
activity is connected to this segment.

The Companies basic value is to secure the shareholders competitive return for the
invested capital in the longer term. In accordance with this purpose the board and the
management shall actively develop and confrol the company and its possessions in
order for the values to be made visible in the best way possible.

3. Equity and dividends
PDR shall have an equity capital at a level appropriate to the Company's objective,
strategy and risk profile.

The Board of Directors' principal policy as regards the payment of dividends is to
maximize returns on equity primarily in terms of increase in the share price. Dividend
payments will be dependent on PDR's earnings, financial situation and cash flow;
possibilities for further value creation through investments taken into account.

Authorizations granted to the Board of Directors to increase PDR's share capital or to
purchase own shares shall as a general rule be restricted to defined purposes. At each
Annual General Meeting, the shareholders shall have the opportunity to evaluate and
consider the board authorizations granted. Thus, the authorizations should be limited in
fime to no later than the date of the next Annual General Meeting. All authorizations not
in compliance with these guidelines should be accounted for in the Annual Report.

4. Equal treatment of shareholders, fransactions with close associates
PDR has one class of shares, and all shares are equal in all respects. Each share in the
Company carries one vote, All shares are freely transferable.

No shareholders shall be freated on unequally unless in the Company's and the
shareholders' common interests. Any decision to waive the pre-emption rights of existing
shareholders to subscribe for shares in the event of an increase of PDR's share capital
must be justified, and an explanation shall be appended to the agenda for the General
Meeting.

Any transactions carried out by PDR in its own shares shall be made either through the
stock exchange or, if carried out in any other way, at prevailing stock exchange prices.
If there is limited liquidity in the Company's shares, the Company should consider other
ways to ensure equal freatment of all shareholders.

In the event of any not immaterial fransactions between the Company and its
shareholders, directors, members of the Executive Management or close associates of
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any such parties, the Board of Directors shall arrange for valuation to be obtained from
an independent third party. The same shall apply fo fransactions between companies
within the PDR group where any of the companies involved have minority shareholders.
All such fransactions shall be reported by the Board of Directors in the Annual Report.

The Company has established and operates guidelines to ensure that members of the
Board of Directors and the Executive Management promptly notify the Board of
Directors if they have any significant direct or indirect interest in any fransaction entered
into by the Company.

5, Freely negotiable shares
No form of restriction on negotiability is or will be included in the Articles of Association
of PDR.

b. General Meetings
Through the General Meeting the shareholders exercise the highest authority in PDR.

General Meetings are convened by written notice to all shareholders with known
addresses with a minimum of 14 days notice. All shareholders are entitled to submit
items to the agenda, meet, speak and vote at the General Meetings.

Proposed resolutions and supporting information shall be distributed to shareholders no
later than the date of the notice. In order to ensure that the General Meeting is an
effective forum for the views of the shareholders and the Board of Directors, the Board
shall see that the information distributed is sufficiently detailed and comprehensive as to
allow the shareholders to form a view on all matters to be considered.

The Board of Directors shall take steps to ensure that as many shareholders as possible
can exercise their rights by participating in General Meetings in PDR, for instance by
setting deadlines for shareholders o give notice of their infention to attend the meeting
(if any) close to the date of the meeting as possible and by giving shareholders who are
not able to attend the option to vote by proxy. The Board of Directors shall make
arrangements for shareholders voting by proxy to give voting instructions on each
matter to be considered at the meeting.

The General Meetings shall be organized in such a way as to facilitate dialogue
between shareholders and the officers of the Company. Thus, the Board of Directors
must ensure that the members of the Board and the auditor (and, if any, the nomination
committee) are present at all General Meetings. Also, the Board of Directors shall make
arrangements to ensure an independent Chairman for each General Meeting, for
instance by arranging for the person who opens the General Meeting to put forward a
specific proposal for a Chairman.

The Minutes of the General Meetings shall be made available on PDR's web site.
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7. Nomination committee

Due to the size of the Company, PDR has chosen not to elect a nomination committee.
However, a continuous evaluation is carried out of whether or not a nomination
committee should be laid down in the Articles of Association and elected.

8. The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the management of the
Company, including responsibility to supervise and exercise control of the Company's
activifies.

The Board of Directors of PDR shall consist of 3 - 5 directors elected by the General
Meeting.

In order to give shareholders an opportunity to re-evaluate the members of the Board,
term of office for members of the Board of Directors of PDR is two years. Directors may
and should be re-elected so that the entire Board of Directors is not replaced at the
same time (save for in extraordinary situations). However, when re-electing members of
the Board, the value of continuity should be balanced against the need for renewal,
the Board's independence of the Executive Management taken info consideration. The
existing directors shall be presented in the Annual Report and on the Company's web
site. All proposed directors will be infroduced in detail minimum two weeks prior o the
General Meeting.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall always be elected by the General Meeting.

The composition of the Board of Directors shall always ensure that the Board can attend
to the common interests of all shareholders and meet the Company's need for
expertise, capacity and diversity.

Attention should be paid that the Board of Directors can function effectively as a
collegiate body. The Board shall consist of individuals who are wiling and able o work
as a team. Each member shall have sufficient time available 1o devote to his or her
appointment as a director.

The composition of the Board of Directors shall ensure that it can operate independently
of any special interests. At least half of the members of the Board shall be independent
of the Company's Executive Management and material business contacts. At least two
of the directors shall be independent of the Company's main shareholder(s).

Members of the Board of Directors, or persons closely connected with them, shall not be
consultants for any Company in the PDR group, not be employed by or have any other
agreements of economic significance with any such companies. The PDR group cannot
without the approval of the Board of Directors of PDR buy consultancy services from
companies in which any director is an owner, employee or otherwise has an interest. This
extends to any Company that according to the Public Limited Companies Act § 1-3isin
the same group of companies.
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All the directors are encouraged to hold shares in PDR, however not to an extent which
can encourage a short-term approach which is not in the best interest of PDR and its
shareholders over the longer term.

PDR does not have more than 200 employees, and therefore, no corporate assembly
has been elected.

9.

The work of the Board of Directors

The proceedings and responsibilities of the Board of Directors have been laid down in
written guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors.

The main responsibilities of the Board of Directors are to:

Lead PDR's strategic planning and make decisions that form the basis for the
Executive Management to prepare for and implement investments and structural
measures, The Company's strategy shall be reviewed on a regular basis;

Ensure that all instructions given by the Board of Directors are complied with;

Ensure that the Board of Directors are well informed about the Company's and
the group's financial position,

Produce an annual plan for its work, with particular emphasis on objectives,
strategy and implementation;

Ensure the adequacy of the Company's Executive Management and issue
instructions for its work in which the areas of responsibilities and duties are clearly
defined, also with respect to the relationship between the Executive
Management and the Board of Directors,

Agree on dividend policy;

Annually evaluate its work, performance, composition and expertise and that of
the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ"). The evaluation of the Board's work
should, in case a nomination committee is being established, be made available
to such committee; and

The Board of Directors shall carry out an annual review of the most important
areas of risk exposure, including risks and controls related to financial reporting. In
that connection, the Board shall ensure that an appropriate system of direction,
risk management and internal control is established and maintained. Such system
shall ensure that the Company group activities are conducted in accordance
with all rules and regulations applicable to the group, PDR's Articles of
Association, its corporate values and its ethical guidelines, as well as
authorizations and instructions approved by the General Meeting. The internal
confrol arrangements must address the organization and implementation of the
Company's financial reporting. The Board must provide information in the Annual
Report on how the Company's internal control procedures are organized.
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= Adopt guidelines for the frequency and policy for external financial reporting.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors carries a particular responsibility for ensuring that
the Board of Directors performs its duties in a satisfactory manner and that the Board is
well organized.

The Board of Directors will elect a deputy chairman who takes chair in the event that
the Chairman of the Board cannot or should not lead the work of the Board, including in
matters of a material nature in which the Chairman has an active involvement.

The Board of Directors may appoint board committees, for instance in order to help
ensure thorough and independent preparation of matters relating to financial reporting
and compensation paid to the members of the Executive Management. The Board of
Directors of PDR has currently not appointed any committees. If the Board of Directors
should choose to appoint board committees, the Board of Directors shall adopt
guidelines for the activities and responsibilities of such Board committees and account
for details in the Annual Report on all committees appointed. Membership of board
committees should be restricted to directors who are independent of the Executive
Management.

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company. Further, the
CEO s responsible for ensuring that the Company's accounts are in accordance with dll
applicable legislation, and that the assets of the Company are monthly managed.

The CEQ is appointed by the Board of Directors and reports to the Board of Directors. His
or her powers and responsibilities are defined in more detailed instructions adopted by
the Board of Directors.

10. Remuneration of the Board of Directors

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors is determined annually by
the General Meeting, on the basis of the Board's responsibility, expertise, time
commitment and the complexity of the operations of PDR. As the directors are
encouraged to own shares in the Company, consideration should be given in this
respect to arrange for members to invest part of their remuneration in such shares at
market price.

The remuneration is not linked to the Company's performance. No directors have been
granted or will be granted share options and no directors are parts in incentive
programs available for the Executive Management and/or other employees.

As a general rule, no members of the Board of Directors {or companies with which they
are associated) shall take on specific assignments for the Company in addition to their
appointment as director. If such assignments are made, it shall be disclosed to the full
Board and the remuneration shall be approved by the Board. Further, all remuneration
paid to each of the directors shall be described in the Annual Report. Such description
shall include details of all elements of the remuneration and benefits of each member
of the Board, any remuneration paid in addition to normal director's fees included.
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; Remuneration of the Executive Management
The CEO's remuneration shall be determined by a convened meeting of the Board of
Directors.

Remuneration for the other members of the Executive Management is determined by
the CEO in accordance with guidelines provided by the Board of Directors. The
guidelines are annually communicated to the General Meeting and included in the
Annual Report together with i. a. detailed information on all elements of the
remuneration. The information to the General Meeting shall pay particular attention to
any changes made during the last year.

PDR does not have share option schemes or other arrangements to award shares to
employees, as other kinds of bonus schemes or incentives are being preferred. Any
incentives provided to members of the Executive Management shall be in accordance
with the principles set out in the Guidelines for Remuneration of Executive Management.

12.  Information and communication

PDR will ensure that the shareholders receive accurate, clear, relevant and fimely
information related to all matters of significance to shareholders. The medium used for
publication will be selected fo ensure simultaneous and equal access for all equity
shareholders to the information:

= Each year, PDR publishes an overview of the dates for major events.

= All information distributed to PDR's shareholders is published on www.petrolia.no
at the same time as it is sent to shareholders.

*  When publishing annual and interim reports, the Company holds public
presentations that are simultaneously broadcast over the world wide web.

= Al information is available in English.

The Board of Directors has adopted guidelines for the Company's reporting of financial
and other information based on openness, equal treatment of all shareholders and
participants in the securities market, and restrictions imposed by law.

The guidelines also include information requirements to the internal freatment of
important information and insider trading instructions and for the Company group's
contact with shareholders other than through General Meetings.

13.  Take-Overs

The Board of Directors and the Executive Management will not seek to hinder or
obstruct fake-over bids for the Company's shares or activities unless there are good
reasons for this. In the event of any possible take-over or restructuring situation the Board
of Directors will take particular care to protect shareholder value and the common
interests of the shareholders. The Board of Directors will not exercise mandates or pass
any resolutions to obstruct the take-over bid unless approved by the General Meeting
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following announcement of the bid. Any transaction which is in fact a disposal of the
Company's activities should be decided by a General Meeting.

14. _ Guidelines for the auditors and associated persons' non-auditing work
The auditer is elected by the General Meeting and shall report to the General Meeting.

Too much non-auditing work being assigned to the auditor may jeopardize this position
and diminish the public confidence in the auditor's integrity and independence of PDR.
The primary iask of the auditor shall be to perform the audit work required by law and
professional standards with the care, competence and integrity prescribed by law or
said standards.

The auditor will submit the main features of the plan for the audit to the Board of
Directors annudlly, Further, the Board of Directors will receive an annual written
confirmation from the auditor that the requirements of independence and objectivity
have been met. The auditor shall also at least once a year present to the Board of
Directors a review of the Company's internal control procedures, including identified
weaknesses and proposals for improvement.

The auditor will participate in any meetings of the Board of Directors which deal with the
Annual Accounts. At these meetings, the auditor shall review material changes in the
Company's accounting principles, comment on any material estimated accounting
figures and report all material matters on which there has been disagreement between
the auditor and the Executive Management of the Company. At least once a year, the
Board of Directors shall have a meeting with the auditor in which no member of the
Executive Management is present.

The Board of Directors of PDR has adopted guidelines in respect of the use of the
auditor by the Company's Executive Management for services other than audit.

Each year, the auditor shall provide the Board with a summary of all services in addition
to audit work which have been undertaken for the Company.

The Board of Directors must report the remuneration paid to the auditor at the Annual

General Meeting, including details of the fee paid for audit work and any fees paid for
other specific assignments.
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